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BRIVING GREVYATE YWIGTRUBMIBIE W)
ADBRIANICED NEW FRRDUCTS & TECHNOLOEY

Marking 5o years of distinctively serving customers in
Europe, John Deere hosted its largest-ever European dealer
event in Warsaw, Poland, in2006. Among the new products
introduced were more fuel-efficient, higher-horsepower
6030-series and 7030-series tractors, innovative hay and
forage equipment, and intelligent sprayer technology,
manufactured by John Deere factories in Europe and
throughout the world.

The Warsaw show had a decidedly global flavor, attracting
participants from 58 countries. Plus, the program featured
training and product demonstrations that were conducted
in16 languages.
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John Deere Senior Management Team from left: Sam Allen, Dave Everitt, Jim Israel, Bob Lane, Jim Jenkins, Nate Jones, Mike Mack and H.J. Markley. Shown
with the John Deere 1270D harvester, the warld's best-selling forestry harvesting product, updated in 2006 forincreased power and improved fuel economy.
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HOW WE'RE GROWING
A GREAT BUSINESS

John Deere made further progress toward its ambitious goals in 2006. Our
ongoing actions to grow a great business helped drive earnings to a record high
for a third consecutive year. The company also further reduced its asset intensity
and has become better-prepared to prosper throughout the economic cycle. In
concert with changes being made within the company, powerful economic and
demographic trends provided further moementum to our efforts. The broadly
based spread of global affluence and the increasing popularity of biofuels are
likely to hold great promise for John Deere's future.

For fiscal 2006, the company reported net income of $1.69 billion on total net
sales and revenues of $22.15 billion. One-time items, primarily the gain on sale of our health care operations,
added more than $200 million to reported earnings. Earnings per share from continuing operations rose 7 percent.

Both our construction and forestry (C&F) and credit operations had record results. C&F reported its fourth
straight year of strong improvement, driven by a broader slate of innovative products and a focus on winning
new and larger customers. Our credit operations benefited from growth in the loan portfolio and a continued
record of excellent credit quality.

Deere's agricultural-equipment operations extended their preeminence and remained strongly profitable despite
lackluster markets in many parts of the world. Advanced models of highly fuel-efficient farm machinery attracted
new customers and led to impartant market-share gains. Performance in our commercial and consumer equipment
business moved to a higher level, aided by new models of riding lawn equipment and by rapid growth in the
landscapes business.

FUNDAMENTALS COMPELLING

Deere’s growth plans are being propelled by a strengthening and powerful global-economic tailwind. Farm
commodity production, as an example, has been expanding across the world in recent years yet has consistently
fallen short of demand. Global carryover stocks of corn and wheat are at 30-year lows in relation to use,
Consumption is being driven by a global population growing in both size and affluence, and by the increasing
popularity of renewable fuels. The resulting demand for agricultural production worldwide - the output of our
customers, in many cases —should be quite beneficial to John Deere.

Renewable energy seems certain to have a major impact on the future of global agriculture. Roughly 20 percent
of U.S. corn production in 2004, or approximately 2 billion bushels, is expected to be used for ethanol over the next
year, an amount that has doubled since 2003. Market dynamics — plus, the political wilf for energy independence -
will play a major role in the ultimate extent of biofuel usage in many countries. Meanwhile, regulations already in
place should drive further gains on a worldwide scale for some time, and John Deere is lending its full support to the
pursuit of the best ideas for expanding renewable fuel sources.

Compelling demographics are positive for John Deere's future as well. Besides driving food demand, rising
incomes —spreading broadly across the world’s growing population — have also sparked a global construction
boom, bringing benefits to construction and forestry markets. Likewise, growing affiuence is leading more people
to make use of professional lawn-care and landscaping services and to own multi-acre plots of ground in rural or
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John Deere Wind Energy provides financial Offering both brawn and efficiency, the new 350D
and project management support for the y 'i‘::—-— excavator gets the job dane with 10% more horse-
growing community wind-energy market, S power than its predecessor while using the same
which, as shown, often involves harvesting {/ amount of fuel, The machine has a wide following
the wind that blows over the property of . among contractors needing a productive salution
Deere’s own equipment customers. / for site development and heavy-construction work.

suburban areas. This is true not only in North America, but also includes Europe and Australia. In many cases,
this property is being maintained with commercial-grade mowers, small tractors and utility vehicles that carry
the John Deere name. What's more, these purchases often are financed by our customer-focused credit operation,
which supports the sale of all types of Deere equipment. John Deere Credit now has a presence in17 countries,
up from only two a decade ago.

EXECUTING OUR PLANS FOR GROWTH

Deere is committed to growth, targeting average gains of 7 percent a year over the business cycle in economic
profit, or Shareholder Value Added (SVA), the difference between operating profit and an implied cost of capital.
This is an ambitious goal, requiring higher sales and a continued emphasis on innovation.

Extending the John Deere brand to a broader worldwide audience remains a top priority. Last year, sales outside
the U.S. and Canada - which already have doubled since the end of the last decade — surpassed $6 billion for the
first time. Among other achievements, important projects in emerging parts of the world moved ahead, notably
construction of a new tractor factory in Brazil and a wholly owned drivetrain facility in China. We also opened a
new technical and engineering center in India, where our value line of John Deere-manufactured sooo-series
tractors has enjoyed great success and become a leading exported product. During the year, the company also
strengthened its distribution and product-support network in Russia, a3 market well-suited for Deere’s brand of
productive and reliable equipment.

Attracting new customers is vital to our growth plans. In this regard, John Deere is extending the preeminent
position it enjoys in many traditional large-equipment lines in the U.S. to other parts of the world and additional
product sectors. These include large-scale spraying and high-performance construction and forestry equipment,
as well as smaller tractors and upgraded utility vehicles. Increased offerings in smaller equipment are in response
to growing demand from part-time farmers and large property owners. John Deere Landscapes, whose primary
market includes professional landscape contractors, has become the number-one wholesale distributor of irrigation,
nursery, lighting and landscape materials in the United States. Landscapes is a shining example of how the Deere
team has achieved SVA growth through disciplined acquisitions. We're also connecting with rural customers in an
entirely new way by making substantial investments in wind energy. '

Advanced technology services make a particularly appealing platform for SVA growth, typically carrying attractive -
margins yet requiring modest levels of asset support. Advanced service offerings from John Deere’s Intelligent
Mobile Equipment Technologies (IMET) group, based on global positioning technology, are experiencing strong
sales gains. During the year, IMET introduced an advanced guidance system that autornatically handles turns at the
end of the crop row. Previously, these “headland turns” required significant intervention on the part of the operator.

GAINING FROM OPERATING EXCELLENCE

Rigorous asset management remains the linchpin of our strategy to deliver higher amounts of economic profit on
a more consistent basis. In 2006, trade receivables and inventories declined by a further $258 million and, through
year-end, had fallen in relation to sales for 26 consecutive quarters versus the same quarter of the prior year. Much
of our success controlling assets has resulted from investments in improved efficiency and the adoption of related
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operating processes. As an example, the $140-million multi-year redevelopment project at our Waterloo, lowa,
tractor factory, now nearing completion, has reduced floor space by some 2 million square feet and helped achieve
major reductions in manufacturing cost, cycle time and inventory levels. Similar efforts, though smaller in scale,
are progressing or have been completed at other major factories worldwide. At the same time, the company is
accelerating implementation of the Deere Production System (DPS), a common set of world-class manufacturing
practices that make our factories more efficient and help keep production rates in step with retail-order patterns.

Suchimprovements are leading to healthy levels of SVA and cash flow. SVA totaled $948 millionin 2006 and in
each of the last three years has been more than twice as high as in our very best year prior to that period. Cash flow
from operating activities was approximately $1 billion in 2006. With these dollars, Deere has been able to invest in
growth while reducing the share count through buybacks, as well as increasing dividend payments. More than 30
million shares have been repurchased since early 2004 and the quarterly dividend rate has been doubled.

OUR AIM: PERFORMANCE THAT ENDURES

We aspire to distinctively serve customers —those linked to the land — through a great business. Thus John Deere is
raising the bar, whether serving customers, enriching our teams, tightening our cost and asset structure, or
charting a course for innovative growth. We are targeting superior results on an everyday basis and solid profitability
in all market conditions. No doubt, this is a high aspiration but one we have confidence in achieving.

Our efforts, after all, have plenty going for them - notably, the backing of a committed employee and
management group some 47,000 strong. They are helping create an aligned, high performance-based culture.

In addition, Deere has a dealer network and product-service organization that's second to none and a slate of
advanced products known the world over for quality and value. We are benefiting as well from exciting economic
and demographic trends that could possibly make our company as well-known in the future for fueling the world
as for feeding it.

We press ahead, therefore, in the belief that our company has what it takes to bring our goals within reach and
make John Deere, the business, and John Deere, the investment, as well-regarded as the praducts bearing our
brand. To all those we are privileged to serve, we say thanks for your support. We pledge to earn your continued
loyalty by delivering perfarmance that endures.

Sincerely, December19,2006

UL

RobertW. Lane

New for 2007, the EZtrak-series
mower lineup is expected to get a
strong reception from homeowners
who want John Deere quality and
value in a zero-tura-radius product.
Targeted for residential customers,
the three E2trak models reduce
mowing time with increased speed
and maneuverability. ;

In Brazil, John Deere’s 3510 sugar cane harvester, shown here, is gaining a
leading market position thanks to its productivity, serviceability and enviran-
mental advantages. Built at the company’s Cataldo plant, the 3510 is the first
Deere-branded sugar cane harvester manufactured and sold in Brazil.
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2006 Highliinos

Growing global market presence helps drive earnings
to record $1.69 billion; total sales and revenues rise 5%
to $22.15 billion.

With focus on asset management and key operating
processes such as order fulfiliment, company is positioned
to respond rapidly to changes in retail marketplace; trade
receivables and inventories decline by $258 million for year,

Rigorous trough-management process moves ahead in
all divisions, targeting results at cycte's bottom in line with
cost of capital, or higher.

Eleven more factories earn initial cectification in the Deere
Production System, aimed at improved quality, productivity
and operating consistency; brings total certified to 23,

BisciplinedlGrowth
Vital to growing a great business, the Team Enrichment

Initative stresses importance of “attracting and devetoping
the best talent from all backgrounds globally.”

Focusing on growth and innovation, enterprise R&sD
spending and capital expenditures reach $1.5 biilion.

Robust business-growth process created to provide
consistent framework for growth efforts across company.

£1,041 §938 1948
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{2004 ond 2005 fotals include discontinued operstions)
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FINANCIAL SERVICES - SVA (MM)

(2004 and 2005 totals include discontinued operations)

2006 Financial Services Highlights

Credit net income reaches record $343 million, helped by
continued portfolio growth and strong credit quality.

Managed portfolio increases by more than $1 billion, to $21.5
billion, mainly due to growth in financing to retail customers.

Record of strong credit quality continues: Write-offs total
0.21%, or about $2 for every $1,000 financed.

Disciplined Growth

Increasing its presence in the fast-developing wind energy
business, Deere had 45 turbines in operation with generating

capacity of 55 megawatts, representing an investment of $65 million;

an additional $245 million in projects are under construction.
Other growth areas include John Deere Risk Protection (crop

insurance agency ), which earned over $35 million in commissions
in second year of operation, as well as Farm Plan, highly successful

revalving-charge product relaunched in 2005.
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AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT - SVA (MM)

2006 C&F Highlights

Record year for C&&F: Sales increase 10%, to $5.8 billion; operating
profit reaches $802 million on stronger price realization, margin on
increased shipments, efficiencies from higher production valumes.

Newer products that help drive gainsin key segments include
excavators, compact track loaders and motor graders.

C&F consolidates manufacturing of full-tree forestry products at
plants in Davenport and Dubuque, lowa; Canadian facility closed.

Disciplined Growth

Focus to continue on serving broader customer base, incfuding large
contractor customers, with full range of products and compelling
value propaosition: Superior productivity and machine uptime, plus
low daily operating costs.

Alliance announced to create |DLink machine-monitoring and infor-
mation-delivery system to be sold by C&F dealers. System collects,
transmits and manages information about machine location, use and
maintenance,
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EQUIPMENT - SVA (MM)

2006 Agricultural Equipment Highlights

Ag Division has salid results despite lackluster conditions in major markets:
Sales decline 3%, to $10.2 billion; operating profit is $882 million.

Building on recent gains in an important market, Deere introduces
high-capacity 4930 self-propelled sprayer; 120-foot boom makes it
mast productive sprayer ever built by John Deere,

john Deere 8430 tractor, powered by company's ctean-burning
engine technology, sets fuel-efficiency record for size class,

Disciplined Growth

Advanced products expected to attract new customers 10
Deere brand include 6030 premium series and 7030 full-frame
tractors, as well as new line of productive round balers.

Major projects move ahead to position company for growth in
emerging markets: Tractor factory in Brazil (higher volumes and
larger models); also, new drivetrain facility in China {transmissions
for midsize tractors worldwide).

Key service businesses include John Deere Intelligent Mobile
Equipment Technologies, John Deere Agri Services, and recently
acquired Roberts lrrigation Products.

$345 $420 $504
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CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY - SVA (MM)

2006 C&CE Highlights

Sales increase 8% to $3.9 billion, benefiting from the success of
new products and growth in the landscapes operation.

Operating profit rises 21% to $221 million, helping push SVA into
positive territory; asset turns and margins both show improvement.

Positive response to new products such as Select Series premium
riding lawn equipment, available at John Deere dealers. Also of
note, 3020- and 4020-series compact tractors equipped with
integrated cab have great appeal to customers.

Disciplined Growth

New products targeting increased market position include residen-
tial zero-turn-radius mowers and high-performance utility vehicles.

In support of larger mass-market presence, Lowe’s and Home Depot
stores offering select models of popularico-series lawn tractors,
updated for2007.

Successful operations of John Deere Landscapes — now with
nearly 300 locations across the U.5. and Canada —serving needs
of growing customer group, professional landscape contractors.
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& SUSTATNAELE FERASRMANGE

Shareholder Value Added (SVA) - essentially, the differ-
ence between operating profit and pretax cost of capital —is
a metric used by fohn Deere to evaluate business results and
measure sustainable performance.

In arriving at SVA, each equipment segment is assessed a
pretax cost of assets -12% of average identifiable operat-
ing assets with inventory at standard cost {believed to more
closely approximate the current cost of inventory and the
cornpany’s related investment).

The financial-services businesses are assessed a cost of
equity of approximately 18% pretax. The amount of SVA s
determined by deducting the asset or equity charge from
operating profit.

Additienol information on these metrics and their relationship to emounts presented

m decordance with GAAP con be found at our Web site, www johndeere com.
Note: Some totals may vary due to rounding.

Qeeere Ferapment; Opasiions

$MM unless indicated 04 o5 ob
Net Sales 17673 19401 19884
Op Profit 1905 1842 1905
Avg Assets

With Inventories @ 5td Cost 7477 8312 8634

With Inventaries @ LIFO 6482 7248 7546
CROA% @ LIFO 29.4 254 25.2
Asset Turns (S1d Cost) 236 233 230
Cp Margin % x10.78 x$.49 x9.58
OROA % @ Standard Cost 5.5 22.2 221
$MM o4 o5 06
Avg Assets @ Std Cost 7477 £312 8634
Op Profit 1905 1842 1905
Cost of Assets -897 -998 -1036
SVA 1008 844 869

Deere Equipment Operations, to create and grow SVA, are targeting
an opergting return on average operating assets (OROA) of 20%

at mid-cycle sales volumes in any given year —and other ambitious
returns ot other poinis in the cycle. {For purposes of this calculation,
operating assets are average identifiable assets during the yeor with
inventories valued ot standard cost.)

Financial Services

$MM unless indicated 04 [ ob
Net Income 309 345 584

Avg Equity 2265 2227 2466
ROE% 13.6 15.5 23.7
MM o4 o5 ob
Op Profit 466 497 521

Changein Alfowance

For Doubtful Receivables (8) (12) 15

SVA Income: 458 479 536
Avg Equity Continuing Operations 2163 2110 2424
Avg Allowance

Fof Doubtful Receivables 165 150 148
SWA Avg Equity 2328 2260 2572
SVA Income 458 479 536
Cost of Equity -414 -410 -457
SVA Continuing Cperations Taa T D
SVA Discontinued Operations - _25 _0
SVA 33 94 79

Deere Financial Services, ta create and grow SVA, are targeting an after-tox
return on average equity of appraximately 13%. The Financial Services SVA
metric is calculated on @ pretax basis, with certain adjustments. Operating profit
is adjusted for changes in the aflowance for doubtful receivables and for discon-
tinued operations, while the actuol allowance is added to the equity base. These
adjustments are made to reflect actual write-offs in both income and equity.

Agricultural Equipment

$MM unless indicated 04 o5 ob
Net Sales anz 10567 10232
Op Profit 1072 970 882
Avg Assets

With lnventaries @ Std Cost 3755 4296 4385

With Inventories @ LIFO 3128 3672 3652
OROA% @ LIFOC 343 26.9 24.2
Asset Turns (Std Cost) 2.59 2.46 233
Oo Margin % x11.03 x9.18 x8.62
QOROA % @ Standard Cost 285 22.6 201
$MM 04 05 1
Awg Assets @ 5td Cost 3755 4296 4386
Cp Profit 1072 970 882
Costof Assets -450 -516 -526
SVA 622 454 356

Canstruction & Forestry

$MM unless indicated o4 o5 ob
Net Sales 4214 5229 5775
Op Profit 587 689 802
Avg Assets

With Inventories @ Std Cost 2015 2244 2481

With Inventories @ LIFO 1863 2082 2313
OROA% @ LIFO 3.5 331 347
Asset Turns (Std Cost) 209 2.33 2.33
Op Margin % x13.93  x13.18  «13.89
OROA % @ Standard Cost 291 30.7 322
SMM 04 o5 ob
Avg Assets @ Std Cost 2015 2244 2481
Op Profit 587 689 802
Cost of Assets -242 -269 -298
SVA 345 420 504

Commercial & Consumer Equipment

$MM unless indicated 04 0§ ob
Net Sales 3742 3605 3877
Op Profit 246 183 2
Avg Assets

With Inventories @ 5td Cost 1707 1772 1767

With Inventories @ LIFO 1491 554 1581
ORCA% @ LIFO 16.5 1.8 14.0
Asset Turns (Std Cost) 219 2.03 239
Op Margin % x6.57 x5.08 x5.70
OROA % @ Standard Cost 14,4 10.3 115
SMM o4 o5 ob
Aug Assets @ Std Cost 1707 1772 1767
Op Profit 246 183 1
Costof Assets - 205 -213 -212
SVA 4 (30) 9
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
OCTOBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

OVERVIEW

Organization

The company’s Equipment Operations generate revenues and
cash pnimarily from the sale of equipment to John Deere dealers
and distributors. The Equipment Operations manufacture and
distribute a full line of agricultural equipment; a variety of
commercial and consumer equipment; and a broad range of
construction and forestry equipment. The company’s continuing
Financial Services primarily provide credit services, which
mainly finance sales and leases of equipment by John Deere
dealers and trade receivables purchased from the Equipment
Operations. In addition, Financial Services offer certain crop
risk mitigation products and invest in wind energy generation.
The health care operations, included in Financial Services,
were classified as discontinued operations due to their sale

(see Note 2). These operations provided managed health care
services for the company and certain outside customers.

The information in the following discussion is presented in a
format that includes information grouped as the Equipment
Operations, Financial Services and Consolidated. The company
also views its operations as consisting of two geographic areas,

the U.S. and Canada, and outside the U.S. and Canada.

Trends and Economic Conditions
The company’s businesses are currently affected by the following

key trends and economic conditions. Worldwide farm econoniic
conditions remain promising as demand for crops is benefiting
from a global population that is gaining in both size and affluence,
and a sharp rise in the use of renewable fuels. However, fiscal
2007 company sales in the U.S. and Canada are expected to
have a slow start as a result of the level of used equipment
inventories and customer uncertainty regarding the direction
of U.S. farm legislation. Industry retail sales of agricultural
equipment in the U.S. and Canada in 2007 are expected to be
approximately flac for the year, while sales in Western Europe
are forecast to be flat to down shightly. In South America and
Australia, the outlook for industry retail sales for 2007 is expected
to be down about 10 percent and nearly 25 percent, respectively.
The company’s agricultural equipment net sales were down
3 percent for 2006 and are forecast to be up approximately
4 percent in 2007. The company’s commercial and consumer
equipment net sales were up 8 percent in 2006. These sales
are forecast to be up about 4 percent in 2007, reflecting the
impact of higher sales from the landscapes operations and the
introduction of new products. Markets for construction and
forestry equipment are expected to see a slowdown in 2007.
The company’s construction and forestry net sales increased
10 percent in 2006 and are forecast to decrease about 5 percent
in 2007. Net income for the company’s credit operations in
2007 is expected to improve to approximately $345 million
due to growth in the credit portfolio.

Ttems of concern include the availability and price of raw
materials, including steel and tires, which have an impact on
the results of the company’s equipment operadions. To date,
company factories have been able to secure adequate supplies of

such materials, though prices have risen. In addition, producing
engines that continue to meet high performance standards,

vet also comply with increasingly stringent emissions regulations
is one of the company’s major priorities. In this regard,

the company is making and intends to continue to make the
financial and technical investment needed to produce engines
in conformance with global emissions rules for off-road diesel
engines. Changes in Brazilian government programs that may
result from difficult farm income conditions in Brazil are a
concern, as i uncertainty over the direction of U.S. farm
legislation. Collapse of the Doha round of World Trade
Organization talks adds uncertainty about the direction of global
trade and potential effects on the company’s customers.

The strong results for the year provide evidence of the
company’s success in building a fundamentally more agile and
profitable business, while introducing advanced new products
and services to a growing global customer base. In addition to
providing record earnings in 2006, the company also funded an
aggressive global growth plan, returned $1.6 billion to investors
through share repurchases and dividends, and achieved a further
reduction in trade recervables and inventories,

2006 COMPARED WITH 2005

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
Worldwide net income in 2006 was $1,694 million, or §7.18
per share diluted {§7.26 basic), compared with $1,447 mullion,
or $5.87 per share diluted ($5.95 basic), in 2005. Income from
continuing operations, which excludes the company’s discon-
tinued health care business (see Note 2), was $1,453 million,
or $6.16 per share diluted ($6.23 basic) in 2006, compared to
$1,414 million, or $5.74 per share diluted ($5.81 basic) last year.
Net sales and revenues from continuing operations increased
5 percent to $22,148 million in 2006, compared with $21,191
million in 2005. Net sales of the Equipment Operations
increased 2 percent in 2006 to §19,884 million from $19,401
million last year. This included a positive effect for price changes
of 3 percent. Equipment net sales in the U.S. and Canada
increased 3 percent in 2006. Net sales outside the U.S. and
Canada increased by 2 percent, which included a negative
effect of 1 percent for currency translation.
Worldwide Equipment Operations had an operating profit

of 1,905 million in 2006, compared with $1,842 million in 2005,
Higher operating profit was primarily due to improved price
realization and lower retirement benefit costs. Partially offsetting
these factors were increased raw material costs, higher selling
and administrative expenses, the impact of lower shipping
volumes and increased spending for research and development.

. The Equipment Operations’ net income was §1,089
million in 2006, compared with $1,096 million in 2005.
The same operating factors mentioned above along with the
expense related to the repurchase of certain outstanding debt
securities and higher effective tax rates affected these results.

Net income of the company's Financiat Services

operations in 2006 increased to $584 million, compared with
$345 million in 2005, primarily due to the sale of the health
care operations. Income from the Financial Services continuing




operations in 2006 was $344 million, compared with $312
million in 2003. The increase was primarily a result of growth
in the credit portfolio, partially offset by a higher provision
for credit losses. Addinonal information is presented in the
following discussion of the credit operations.

Income from discontinued operations was $241 million
in 2006, or $1.02 per share diluted ($1.03 basic), compared to
$33 million, or $.13 per share diluted ($.14 basic), last year.
The increase was pnmarily due to the previously mentioned
sale of the health care operations.

The cost of sales to net sales ratio for 2006 was 77.3
percent, compared to 78.2 percent last year. The decrease
was primarily due to improved price realization and lower
retirement benefit costs, partially offset by higher raw material
costs and lower shipping volumes.

Finance and interest income, and interest expense increased
this year primanly due to growth in the credit operations
portfolio and higher financing rates. Other income increased
this year primarily due to investment income from marketable
securities, insurance premiums for extended warranties, crop
insurance commissions and service income. Research and
development casts increased this year due to a large number
of new products. Selling, administrative and general expenses
increased primarily due to growth, share-based compensation
expense and the provision for credit losses. Other operating
expenses were higher primarily as a result of the expense related
to the repurchase of outstanding notes (see Note 3), extended
warranty claims, depreciation related to a higher level of
equipment on operating leases, and service expenses.

The company has several defined benefit pension plans
and defined benefit health care and life insurance plans.

The company’s postretirement benefit costs for these plans in
2006 were $447 million, compared to $538 mullion n 2005.
The long-term expected return on plan assets, which is reflected
in these costs, was an expected gain of 8.4 percent in 2006 and
8.5 percent in 2005, or $795 million in 2006, compared to
$744 million in 2005, The actual return was a gain of $1,364
million in 2006, compared to a gain of $1,057 million in 2005.
In 2007, the expected return will be approximately 8.4 percent.
The total unrecognized losses related to the plans at October 31,
2006 and 2005 were $3.693 nullion and $3,96Y mallion,
respectively. The company expects postretirement benefit costs
in 2007 to be approximately the same as 2006. The company
makes any required contributions to the plan assets under
applicable regulations and voluntary contributions from time

to time based on the company’s liquidity and ability to make
tax-deductible contributions. Total company contributions to
the plans were $866 million in 2006 and $859 million in 2005,
which include direct benefit payments for unfunded plans.
These contributions also included voluntary contributions to
the U.S. plan assets of $739 million in 2006 and $556 million in
2005. Total company contributions in 2007 are expected to be
approximately §443 million, including voluntary contributions
to U.S. plan assets of approximately $340 million. See the
following discussion of “Critical Accounting Policies” for more
information about postretirement benefit obligations.

,

I

BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA RESULTS

The following discussion relates to operating results by
reportable segment and geographic area. Operating profic is
income before external interest expense, certain foreign
exchange gains or losses, income taxes and corporate expenses.
However, operating profit of the credit segment mcludes the
effect of interest expense and foreign exchange gains or losses.

Worldwide Agricultural Equipment Qperations

The agncultural equipment segment had an operating profit

of $882 miltion in 2006, compared with §970 nullien in 2005.
Net sales decreased 3 percent this year due to lower shipments,
partially offset by improved price realization. The decrease in
operating profit was primarily due to the impact of lower
shipments and production volumes, as well as higher selling

and administrative expenses and research and development costs.
Partially offsetting these factors were improved price realization
and lower retirement benefit costs.

Worldwide Commercial and Consumer Equipment Operations
The commercial and consumer equipment segment had an
operating profit of $221 million in 2006, compared with

$183 million in 2005. Net sales increased 8 percent for the year,
primatily due to higher sales in the landscapes operations.

The improved operating profit was primarily due to the
improved profitability of the landscapes operations and lower
retirement benefit costs.

Worldwide Construction and Forestry Operations

The construction and forestry segment had an operating profit
of $802 million in 2006, compared with $689 million in 2005.
Net sales increased 10 percent for the year reflecting strong
activity at the retail level. The operating profit improvement
was primarily due to improved price realization, margin on
increased shipments and efficiencies from stronger production
volumes. These factors were partially offset by higher material
costs, expenses to close a facility in Canada (see Note 3) and
higher research and development costs.

Worldwide Credit Operations

The operating profit of the credit operations was $520 million
in 2006, compared with $491 million in 2005. The increase

in operating profit was primartly due to growth n the credit
portfolio, partially offset by a higher proviston for credit losses
and lower financing spreads. Total revenues of the credit
operations, including intercompany revenues, increased

24 percent in 2006, primarily reflecting the larger portfolio
and higher average finance rates. The average balance of
receivables and leases financed was 15 percent lugher in 2006,
compared with 2005. An increase i average borrowings and
higher interest rates in 20006 resuited in a 44 percent increase
1n interest expense, compared with 2005. The larger average
portfolio financed on the balance sheet and the higher average
borrowings were primanly due te an increase in securntizations
of retail notes accounted for as secured borrowings rather

than sales of receivables. The credit operations’ ratio of earnings
to fixed charges was 1.61 to 1 in 2006, compared to 1.86 to |
in 2005.




Equipment Operations in U.S. and Canada

The equipment operations in the U.S. and Canada had an
operating profit of §1.445 million in 2006, compared with
$1,298 million in 2005. The increase was primarily due to
improved price realization and lower retirement benefit costs,
Partially offsetting these factors were higher raw matenal costs,
the impact of lower shipments and production volumes,
increased selling and administrative expenses, expenses to close
a facility in Canada and higher research and development costs.
Sales increased due to improved price realization, strong retail
demand in construction and forestry equipment, and increased
sales from comniercial and consumer equipment due to the
landscapes operations. Net sales increased 3 percent in 2006
while the physical volume decreased 2 percent, compared
with 2005.

Equipment Operations outside U.S. and Canada

The equipment operations outside the U.S. and Canada had
an operating profit of $460 million in 2006, compared with
$544 mullien in 2005. The decrease was primarily due to the
effects of lower shipments and production volumes in Brazil
due to difficule economic conditions related to farming, lower
shipments in Australia from the effects of a drought, increases
in selling and administrative expenses and higher research and
development costs, partially offset by improved price realization.
Total sales increased from mmprovements in price realization
and higher volume, partially offset by the effect of currency
translation. Net sales and physical volume increased 2 percent
in 2006, compared with 2005.

MARKET CONDITIONS AND OUTLOCK

The company’s equipment sales are projected to be roughly flat
for the full yvear and to increase approximately 5 percent for the
first quarter of 2007, compared to the same periods in 2006,
Consistent with ongoing asset managenient initiatives, produc-
tion levels are expected to be down about 4 percent for both
the year and first quarter of 2007. Construction and forestry
production in the U.S. and Canada is expected to be down
about 16 percent in the first quarter. Based on the above, net
income is forecast to be around $1.325 billion for the year and
in 2 range of $150 million to $175 million for the first quarter.

Agricultural Equipment. Worldwide farm economic conditions
renuain quite premising. Demand for crops is benefiting from a
global population that is gaining in both size and affluence, and
from a sharp rise in the use of renewable fuels in the U.S. and
other parts of the world. Prices for key farm commodities have
surged recently and worldwide carryover stocks for wheat

and comn are at 30-year lows in relation to consumption.
Nevertheless, fiscal 2007 sales in the U.S. and Canada are
expected to get off to a slow start as a result of higher than
desired used equipment inventories and customer uncertainty
regarding the direction of U.S. farm legislation. In addition,
farmers’ concerns over the sustainability of the recent
commedity price rally, and with respect to input coses, are
expected to weigh on 2007 sales. Based on these factors, the
cotnpany projects that industry retail sales in the U.S. and Canada
will be approximately flat for the year.
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In Western Europe, industry retail sales are forecast to be
flat to down slightly for the vear due to the effect of a higher
value-added tax in Germany and further farm consolidation.
Following the sharp downturn of the last two years, industry sales
in South America are expected to be down about 10 percent
for 2007. The forecast reduction is primanly related to uncer-
tainty over government sponsored financing programs in Brazil,
Sales in Australia are expected to be down by nearly 25 percent
for the year, due in large part to the effect of serious drought on
the nation’s wheat crop.

Based on these factors and market conditions, worldwide
sales of the company's agricultural equipment are forecast to
increase by about 4 percent for fiscal year 2007. First quarter
sales are expected to rise about 10 percent, being driven by new
products in Europe and by a late calendar year 2006 sales pickup
n Germany, expected in advance of the value-added tax hike on
January 1. Farm machinery production in the U.S. and Canada
is expected to be down approximately 8 percent for the first
quarter in comparison with the same period a year ago.
Commercial and Consumer Equipment. The company’s
commercial and consumer equipment sales are forecast to
be up about 4 percent for the year. Growth in the landscapes
operattons and the successful introduction of new products
are expected to more than offset the impact of a softer market
for residential housing.

Construction and Forestry. Markets for construction and
forestry equipment are expected to see a slowdown in 2007.
While nonresidential spending is forecast for further improve-
ment, residential housing construction is expected to be lower.
In this environment, the company’s worldwide sales of
construction and forestry equipment are forecast to decrease

by about 5 percent for fiscal 2007.

Credit. Fiscal year 2007 net income for the company’s credit
operations is forecast to be approximately $345 million.

The expected improvement is being driven by growth in the
credit portfolio, largely offset by higher selling and administrative
expenses in support of the segment’s growth initiatives.

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Refonn
Act of 1993 Statements under “Overview,” *“Market Conditions
and Outlook™ and other statements herein that relate to future
operating periods are subject to important risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ materially. Some of these
risks and uncertainties could affect particular lines of business,
while others could affect all of the company’s businesses.

Forward looking statements involve certain factors that
are subject to change, including for the company’s agricultural
equipment segntent the many interrelated factors that affect
farmers’ confidence. These factors include worldwide demand
for agricultural products, world grain stocks, weather and soil
conditions, harvest yields, prices for commaodities and livestock,
crop production expenses (most notably fuel and fertilizer costs),
availability of transport for crops, the growth of non-food uses
for some crops {including ethanol and biodiesel production), real
estate values, available acreage for farming, the land ownership
policies of vanious governments, changes in government farm




programs (including those that may result from the difficult
farm income conditions in Brazil), international reaction to such
programs, global trade agreements, animal diseases and their
effects on poultry and beef consumption and prices (including
bovine spongiform encephalopathy, commonly known as
“mad cow” disease and avian flu), crop pests and diseases
(including Asian rust), and the level of farm product exports
(including concerns about genetically modified organisms).
The success of the fall harvest and the prices realized by farmers
for their crops especially aftect retail sales of agricultural
equipment in the winter.

Factors affecting the outlook for the company’s conumercial
and conswmer equipnient segment include weather conditions,
general econontic conditions in these markets, consumer
confidence, consumer borrowing patterns, consumer purchasing
preferences, housing starts, and spending by municipalities and
golf courses.

The number of housing starts, interest rates and consumer
spending patterns are especially important to sales of the company’s
construction equipment. The levels of public and non-residential
construction also impact the results of the company’s construction
and forestry segment. Prices for pulp, lumber and structural
panels are important to sales of forestry equipment.

All of the company’s businesses and its reported results
are affected by general economic conditions in and the political
and soctal stability of the global markets in which the company
operates. production, design and technological difficulties,
including capacity and supply constraints and prices, including
for supply commodities such as steel and rubber; the availability
and prices of strategically sourced materials, components and
whole goods; the success of new product initatives and
customer acceptance of new products; oil and energy prices and
supphes; inflation and deflation rates, interest rate levels and
foreign currency exchange rates; the availability and cost of
freight; trade, monetary and fiscal policies of various countries,
wars and other international conflicts and the threat thereof;
actions by the U.S. Federal Reserve Board and other central
banks; actions by the U.S. Secunities and Exchange Commussion;
actions by environmental regulatory agencies, including those
related to engine enussions and the risk of global warming;
actions by other regulatory bodies; actions by rating agencies;
capital market disruptions; customer borrowing and repayment
practices, and the number of customer loan delinquencies and
defaults; actions of competitors in the various industries in
which the company competes, particularly price discounting;
dealer practices especially as to levels of new and used field
inventories; labor relations; changes to accounting standards;
the effects of terrorism and the response thereto; and legislation
affecting the sectors in which the company operates.

Company results are also affected by changes m the level of
employee retirement benefits, changes in market values of
investment assets and the level of interest rates, which impact
retirement benefit costs, and significant changes in health care
costs. Other factors that could affect results are changes in
company declared dividends, acquisitions and divestitures of
businesses, conunon stock 1ssuances and repurchases, and the
issuance and retirement of company debt.
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The company’s outlook is based upon assumptions
relating to the factors described above, which are sometimes
based upon estimates and data prepared by government agencies.
Such estimates and data are often revised. The company, except
as required by law, undertakes no obligation to update or revise
its outlook, whether as a result of new developments or
otherwise, Further information concerning the company and
its businesses, including factors that potentially could materially
affect the company’s financial results, is included in other filings
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commuission,

2005 COMPARED WITH 2004

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Worldwide net income in 2005 was §1,447 million, or $5.87
per share diluted (85.95 basic), compared with $1,406 million,
or $3.36 per share diluted (35.69 basic), in 2004. Income from
continuing operations in 2005 was $1,414 mllion, or $5.74
per share diluted ($5.81 basic), compared with $1,398 million,
or $5.53 per share diluted ($5.66 basic), in 2004. Net sales and
revenues from continuing operations (see Note 2) increased
10 percent 1o $21,191 million in 2003, compared with
$19,204 illion in 2004, Net sales of the Equipment Operations
increased 10 percent in 2005 to §19,401 million from $17,673
million in 2004. Net sales in the U.S. and Canada rose

10 percent in 2005. Quuide the U.S. and Canada, net sales
increased by 10 percent, which included a positive effect of

4 percent for currency translation.

Worldwide Equipment Operations had an operating profit
of $1,842 million in 2003, compared with $1,905 million in
2004. Operating profit decreased primarily due to higher selling
and administrative expenses, increased manufacturing overhead
costs related to production system improvements, and higher
research and development costs. These factors were partially
offset by the margin on higher shipments and lower retirement
benefit costs. Improved price realization offset higher raw
material costs. '

The Equipment Qperations’ net income was $1,096
million in 2003, compared with $1,097 million in 2004.

The same operating factors mentioned above affected these
results. However, the decrease in operating profit was
substantially offset by increased interest and investment income,
and a lower effective rax rate.

Net income of the company’s continuing Financial
Services operations in 2005 was $312 million, compared
with $302 million in 2004. The increase was primarily due to
growth in the credit operations portfolio and a lower credit
loss provision. Additional information is presented in the
following discussion of the credit operations.

The cost of sales to net sales ratio for 2005 was 78.2
percent, compared to 76.9 percent in 2004. The increase
was primarily due to higher raw material costs and increased
manufacturing overhead costs, partially offset by improved
price realization and lower retirement benefit costs.

Finance and interest income increased in 2005 primarily
due to growth in the credit operations portfolio and higher
financing rates. Other income increased in 2005 primarily due
to an increase in service income, increased investment income




from marketable securities due to investments made by the
"Equipment Operations and other miscellaneous gains, partially
offset by lower gains on retail note sales and a gain on the sale
of an equipment rental company in 2004. Research and
development costs increased in 2005 due to a higher level of
new product development and exchange rate fluctuations.
Selling, administrative and general expenses increased primarily
due to increased marketing expenses, acquisitions of businesses
and exchange rate fluctuarions. Interest expense increased

due to higher average borrowings and borrowing rates.

Other operating expenses were higher primarily as a result

of an increase in service expenses.

The company has several defined benefit pension plans and
defined benefit health care and life insurance plans. The company’s
postretirement benefit costs for these plans in 2005 were $538
million, compared to $396 million in 2004. The long-term
expected return on plan assets, which is reflected in these costs,
was an expected gain of 8.5 percent in both years, or §744
million in 2003, compared to $671 million in 2004. The actual
return was a gain of $1,057 million in 2005, compared to a gain
of $654 million in 2004. The total unrecognized losses related
to the plans at October 31, 2005 and 2004 were $3,969 million
and $5,149 million, respectively. Total company contributions
to the plans were 3859 million in 2005 and $1,852 nullion in
2004, which include direct benefit payments for unfunded plans.
These contributions also included voluntary contributions to
the U.S. plan assets of $536 million in 2003 and $1,551 million
in 2004. See the following discussion of “Critical Accounting
Policies” for postretirement benefit obligations.

BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS

Worldwide Agricultural Equipment Operations

The agricultural equipment segment had an operating profit of
$970 million in 2005, compared with $1,072 millien in 2004,
Net sales increased 9 percent in 2005 due to improved price
realization, higher shipments and the translation effect of
currency exchange rates. The decrease in operating profit was
primarily a result of increases in manufacturing overhead costs,
research and development costs, and selling and administrative
expenses. Partially offsetting these factors were the margin on
higher shipments and lower retirement benefit costs. Improved
price realization offset the increase in raw matenial costs.

Worldwide Commercial and Consumer Equipment Operations
The commercial and consumer equipment segment had an
operating profit of $183 million in 2003, compared with

$246 million in 2004. Net sales decreased 4 percent in 2003
reflecting the impact of unfavorable weather conditions on

the sale of consumer riding equipment during the critical selling
season. The lower operating profit was primarily due to lower
shipments and production volumes in response to a weaker
retail environment. Improved price realization more than offset
Al increase 1 raw material costs.

Worldwide Construction and Forestry Operations

The construction and forestry segment had an operating profit
of $689 million in 2005, compared with $587 million in 2004.
Net sales increased 24 percent in 2005 reflecting strong activity at
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the retai] level. The operating profit improvement was primarily
due to higher sales and efficiencies related to stronger production
volumes. Improved price realization offset the impact of higher
raw material costs. The results in 2004 included 2 30 million
pretax gain from the sale of an equipment rental company.

Wortdwide Credit Operations

The operating profit of the credit operations was $491 milhon
1t 2005, compared with $466 million in 2004. The increase in
operating profit was primanly due to growth in the portfolio,
as well as a lower credit loss provision, partially offset by lower
financing spreads and lower gains on retail note sales.

Total revenues of the credit operations increased 13 percent

it 2003, pnmanly reflecting the larger portfolio and lgher
average finance rates. The average balance of receivables and
leases financed was 19 percent higher in 2003, compared with
2004. An increase in average borrowings and higher interest
rates in 2005 resulted in a 44 percent increase in interest expense,
compared with 2004. The credit operations’ ratio of earnings
to fixed charges was 1.86 to 1 in 2005, compared to 2.12 to 1
in 2004,

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The discussion of capital resources and liquidity has been
organized to review separately, where appropriate, the company’s
Equipment Operations, Financial Services operations and the
consolidated totals,

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS

The company’s equipment businesses are capital intensive and
are subject to seasonal variations in financing requirements for
inventories and certain receivables from dealers. The Equipment
Operations sell most of their trade receivables to the company’s
credit operations. As a result, there are relatively small seasonal
variations in the financing requirements of the Equipment
Operations. To the extent necessary, funds provided from
operations are supplemented by external financing sources.

Cash provided by operating activities during 2006 was
$1,311 million primarily due to net income adjusted for non-
cash provisions, a decrease in mventones and an increase in
accounts pavable and acerued expenses, Partially offsetting these
operating cash flows were a decrease in the retirement benefit
accruals and an increase 1 trade receivables. The operating cash
flows, proceeds from maturites and sales of marketable securities
of 2,902 million, a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of
$647 million, proceeds from the sales of businesses of §440
million and proceeds from the issuance of common stock of
8328 million (which were the result of the exercise of stock
options) were used primarily to purchase marketable securities
of $2,447 million, repurchase comimon stock for §1,299 million,
decrease borrowings by $923 million, fund purchases of property
and equipment of $493 million and pay dividends to stockholders
of $348 muillion.

Over the last three years, operating activities have
provided an aggregate of $4,356 million in cash. In addidion,
proceeds from muaturities and sales of marketable securities
were $3,918 million, proceeds from the issuance of common
stock were $732 million and the proceeds from sales of
businesses were $381 million. The aggregate amount of




these cash flows was used mainly to purchase marketable
securities of $5,023 million, fund purchases of property and
equipment of $1,306 million, repurchase common stock for
$2,411 million, pay dividends to stockholders of $885 million,
increase receivables from Financial Services by $708 million,
decrease borrowings by $1,234 million and acquire businesses
for $418 million. Cash and cash equivalents also decreased
$2.811 million over the three-year period.

Trade receivables held by the Equipment Operations
increased by $113 million during 2006. The Equipment
Operations sell a significant portion of their trade receivables to
the credit operations (see following consolidated discussion).

Inventories decreased by $178 million in 2006. Most of
these inventories are valued on the last-in, first-out (LIFQ)
method. The ratios of inventories on a first-in, first-out (FIFO)
basis (see Note 13}, which approximates current cost, to fiscal
year cost of sales were 20 percent and 22 percent at October 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Total interest-bearing debt of the Equipment Operations
was $2,252 million at the end of 2006, compared with §3,101
million at the end of 2005 and $3,040 miilion at the end of 2004,
The ratio of total debt to total capital (total interest-bearing
debt and stockholders” equity) at the end of 2006, 2003 and
2004 was 23 percent, 31 percent and 32 percent, respectively.

During 2006, the Equipment Operations paid $783
million to retire long-term borrowings including $500 million
to repurchase long-term borrowings related to a tender offer
(see Note 3).

Capital expendirures for the Equipment Operations in
2007 are estimated to be approximately $370 million.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

The Fmancial Services’ credit operations rely on their ability to
ratse substantial amounts of funds to finance their receivable and
lease portfolios. Their primary sources of funds for this purpose
are a combination of commercial paper, term debt, securitization
of retail notes and equity capital.

Cash flows from the company’s Financial Services
operating activities were $§792 nullion in 2006. Cash provided by
financing activities totaled $1,691 million in 2006, representing
primarily a 1,752 million increase in external borrowings,
partially offset by the payment of $107 million of dividends
to Deere & Conmpany. The cash provided by operating and
financing activities was used pomarily to increase recetvables and
leases. Cash used by investing activities totaled $2,591 million
in 2006, primanily due to receivable and lease acquisitions
exceeding collections and sales of equipment on operating leases
by $2,338 mullion. Cash and cash equivalents also decreased
$103 million.

Over the last three years, the Financial Services operating
activities have provided $2,031 nullion in cash. In addition, an
tncrease in borrowings of $5,774 million, the sale of reccivables
of $2.606 million and the sale of equipment on operating leases
of $1,148 million have provided cash inflows. These amounts
have been used mainly to fund receivable and lease acquisitions,
which exceeded collections by $10,764 nullion, and the
payment of dividends to Deere & Company of $718 million,
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Cash and cash equivalents also decreased $164 million over the
three-year period.

Receivables and leases increased by $2,070 million in
2006, compared with 2005. Acquisition volumes of receivables
and leases increased 2 percent in 2006, compared with 2005.
The volunies of wholesale notes, operating leases, financing
leases, operating loans and revolving charge accounts increased
approximately 23 percent, 19 percent, 11 percent, 8 percent,
and 2 percent, respectively. At October 31, 2006 and 2003, net
receivables and leases administered, which include receivables
previously sold bur still administered, were $21,547 million and
$20,298 million, respectively.

Trade receivables held by the credit operations decreased
by $136 mullion in 2006. The Equipment Operations sell a
significant portion of their trade receivables to the credit
operations (see following consolidated discussion).

Total external interest-bearing debt of the credit
operations was $17,433 million ac the end of 2006, compared
with $15,522 million at the end of 2005 and $11,508 mullion at
the end of 2004. Included in this debt are secured borrowings
of 82,403 million at the end of 2006 and $1,474 million at the
end of 2005. Total external borrowings have increased generally
corresponding with the level of the receivable and lease portfolio,
the level of cash and cash equivalents and the change in payables
owed to the Equipment Operations. The credit subsidiaries’
ratio of total interest-bearing debt to total stockholder’s equity
was 7.1 to 1 ac the end of 2006, 7.2 to 1 at the end of 2005
and 6.4 to 1 at the end of 2004.

The credit operations utilize a revolving muld-bank conduit
facility to securitize floating rate retail notes (see Note 12).

This facility has the capacicy, or “purchase limit,” of up to
$1.75 billion in secured financings or sales outstanding at any
time. This facility has no final maturity date. Instead, upon the
credit operations’ request, cach conduit may elect to renew its
commitment on an annual basis. If this facility is not renewed,
the credit operations would liquidate the secunitizations as the
payments on these retail notes are collected. At Qctober 31,
2006, $1,575 million was outstanding under the facility of
which $1,036 million was recorded on the balance sheet.

During 2006, the credit operations issued $3,140 million
and retired 82,738 mullion of long-term borrowings, which

were primarily medium-term notes.

Capital expenditures for Financial Services in 2007 are
estimated to be approximately $606 million, primarly related
to the wind energy entities.

CONSOLIDATED

Sources of hiquidity for the company include cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securites, funds from operations, the
issuance of commercial paper and term debt, the securitization
of retail notes and committed and uncommitted bank lines

of credit.

Because of the multiple funding sources that have been and
continue to be available to the company, the company expects
to have sufficient sources of liquidity to meet its funding needs.
The company’s commercial paper outstanding at October 31,
2006 and 2003 was approximately $2.6 billion and $2.2 billion,




respectively, while the total cash and cash equivalents and
marketable securities position from continuing operations was
$3.5 billion and $4.4 billion, respectively. The company has
for many years accessed diverse funding sources, including
short-term and long-term unsecured global debt capitat
markets, as well as public and private securitization markets
in the U.S. and Canada.

Lines of Credit. The company also has access to bank lines
of credit with various banks throughout the world. Some of the
lines are available to both Deere & Company and John Deere
Capital Corporation. Worldwide lines of credit totaled
$3.063 million at October 31, 2006, $410 million of which
were unused. For the purpose of computing unused credit lines,
commercial paper and short-term bank borrowings, excluding
secured borrowings and the current portion of long-term
borrowings, were considered to constitute utilization.

Included in the total credit lines at Qctober 31, 2006 was a
long-term credit facility agreement of $3 billion, expiring in
February 2011, The credit agreement requires the Equipment
Qperations to maintain a ratio of total debt to total capital
(total debt and stockholders’ equity excluding accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss)) of 65 percent or less at
the end of each fiscal quarter. At October 31, 2006, the
Equipment Operations were in compliance with this require-
ment. Under this provision, the company’s excess equity
capacity and retained earnings balance free of restriction at
Qctober 31, 2006 was $6,204 million. Alternatively under this
provision, the Equipment Operations had the capacity to incur
additional debt of $11,522 million at October 31, 2006.

Debt Ratings. To access public debt capital markets, the
company relies on credit rating agencies to assign short-term
and long-term credit ratings to the company’s securities as an
indicator of credit quality for fixed income investors. A security
rating is not a recommendation by the rating agency to buy,
sell or hold company securities. A credit rating agency may
change or withdraw company ratings based on its assessment of
the company’s current and future ability to meet interest and
principal repayment obligations. Lower credit ratings generally
result in higher borrowing costs and reduced access to debt
capital markets. The senior long-term and short-term debt ratings
and outlook currently assigned to unsecured company securities
by the rating agencies engaged by the company are as follows:

Senior
Long-Term Short-Term Qutlook
Moody's [nvestors........ccoee. A3 Prime-2 Positive
Service, Inc. :
Standard & Poor's ......veeeeeeene. A A1 Stable

Marketable securities held by the continuing operations
decreased by $352 million during 2006. The marketable
securities that were held by the health care operations in prior
periods have been included in the assets of discontinued
operations (see Note 2).

Trade accounts and notes receivable primarily artse from
sales of goods to dealers. Trade receivables decreased by
$80 million in 2006. The ratio of trade accounts and notes
receivable at October 31 to fiscal year net sales was 15 percent
in 2006, compared with 16 percent in 2005. Total worldwide
agricultural equipment trade receivables decreased $127 miltion,
commercial and consumer equipment receivables increased
$10 million and construction and forestry receivables increased
$37 million. The collection period for trade receivables averages
less than 12 months. The percentage of trade receivables
outstanding for a period exceeding 12 months was 3 percent
and 2 percent at October 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Stockholders’ equity was $7,491 milhon at October 31,
2006, compared with $6,852 million at October 31, 2005.
The increase of $639 million resulted primarily from net income
of $1,694 million, an increase in capital stock of $130 million
and a change in the cumulative translation adjustment of
$80 million, which was partially offset by an increase i wreasury
stock of $930 million and dividends declared of $363 million.

The cash flows from discontinued operations included in
the consolidated cash flows were not material except for the
cash inflow from the sale of the health care operations (net of
cash sold) of approximately $440 million included in the
proceeds from sales of businesses in 2006.

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The company’s credit operations have periodically sold retail
notes to special purpose entities (SPEs) in securitization transac-
tions. The credit operations have used these SPEs in a manner
consistent with conventional practices in the securitization
industry to isolate the retail notes for the benefit of secuntization
investors. The use of the SPEs has enabled these operations to
access the highly liquid and efficient securitization markets for
the sales of these types of financial assets. The amounts of
funding the company chooses to obtain from securitizations
reflect such factors as capital market accessibilicy, relative costs
of funding sources and assets available for securitization.
The company’s total exposure to recourse provisions related
to securitized retail notes, which were sold in prior periods,
was $109 million and the total assets held by the SPEs related
to these securitizations were $994 million at October 31, 2006,
At October 31, 2006, the company had approximately
$140 million of guarantees issued primarily to banks outside the
U.S. related to third-party receivables for the retail financing
of John Deere equipment. The company may recover a portion
of any required payments incurred under these agreements from
repossession of the equipment collateralizing the receivables.
At Qctober 31, 2006, the company had accrued losses of
approximately $3 million under these agreements. The maximum
remaining term of the receivables guaranteed at October 31, 2006
was approximately eight years.
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The company’s credit operations offer crop insurance
products through a managing general agency agreement
{Agreement) with an insurance company (Insurance Carrier).
The credit operations have guaranteed certain obligations under
the Agreement, including the obligation to pay the lnsurance
Carrier for any uncollected premiums. At Qctober 31, 2006,
the maximum exposure for uncollected preminms was approxi-
mately $34 million. Substantially all of the insurance risk
under the Agreement has been mitgated by a syndicate of
private reinsurance companies. [n the event of a widespread
catastrophic crop failure throughout the U.S. and the default of
all the reinsurance companies on their obligations, the company
would be required to reimburse the Insurance Carrier approxi-
mately $432 million at October 31, 2006. The company
believes the likelihood of this event is extremely remote,

At October 31, 2006, the company’s accrued probable losses
are approximately $.2 million under this Agreement,

AGGREGATE CONTRAGTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Most of the company’s contractual obligations to make payments
to third parties are on-balance-sheet debt obligations and capital
lease payments. In addition, the company has off-balance-sheet
obligations for purchases of raw materials, services and property
and equipment along with interest on debt and operating fease
payments. The payment schedule for these contractual obligations
at October 31, 2006 in millions of dellars is as follows:

Less More

than 283 485 than
Total 1 yaar years years  Syears

Debt*

Equipment Operations..... §- 2220 § 283 & 14 § 31 $ 1612
Financigl Services........... 17439 6,334 6757 2185 2163
Total..oorviivcrenn 19,659 6,617 6771 2486 3,775
Interest on debt . 3995 877 1134 654 1,330
Purchase obligations............ 2,590 2,564 16 8 2
Operating leases 301 80 13 53 55
Capital Iases......coc.cvvvviines 13 2 2 2 7

Coniractual obligations ........ $26558 $10140 §$8036 $3213 § 5169

* Principal payments.

** Notes payable of $2,403 willion classified as shost-term on the balance sheet
related to the securitization of retail notes are included in this table based on the
expected payment schedule {see Note 18).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of the company’s consolidated financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. Changes in these estimates and assump-
tions could have a signmificant effect on the financial statements.
The accounting policies below are those management believes are
the ntost cnitical to the preparation of the company’s financial
statements and require the most difficult, subjective or complex
judgments, The company’s other accounting policies are
described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
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Sales Incentives

At the time a sale to a dealer is recognized, the company records
an estimate of the future sales incentive costs for allowances and
fmancing programs that will be due when the dealer sells the
equipment to a retail customer. The estimate is based on
historical data, announced incentive programs, field inventory
levels and settlement volumes. The final cost of these programs
and the amount of accrual required for a specific sale is fully
determined when the dealer sells the equipment to the retail
customer. This is due to numerous programs available at any
particular time and new programs that may be announced after
the company records the sale. Changes in the mix and types of
programs affect these estimates, which are reviewed quarterly.

The sales incentive accruals at October 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 were $629 million, $592 million and $540 million,
respectively. The increases in 2006 and 2005 were primarily
due to the increases in sales.

The estimation of the sales incentive accrual is impacted
by many assumptions. One of the key assumptions is the
historical percentage of sales incentive costs to settlements from
dealers. Over the last five fiscal years, this percent has varied by
approximately plus or minus .5 percent, compared to the
average sales incentive costs to settlements percentage during
that period. Holding other assumptions constant, if this cost
experience percentage were to increase or decrease .5 percent,
the sales incentive accrual at October 31, 2006 would increase
or decrease by approximately $25 million.

Product Warranties

At the time a sale 1o a dealer is recognized, the company
records the estimated future warranty costs. The company
generally determines its total warranty liability by applying
historical claims rate experience to the estimated amount of
equipment that has been sold and is still under warranty based
on dealer inventories and retail sales. The historical claims rate
is primanly determined by a review of five-year claims costs
and consideration of current quality developments. Variances in
claims experience and the rype of warranty programs affect
these estimates, which are reviewed quarterly,

The product warranty accruals at October 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 were $507 million, $335 million and $458 million,
respectively. The increases in 2006 and 2003, compared to 2004,
were primarily due to increases in sales volume. The accrual in
2005 also had a higher level of special warranty programs.

Estimates used to determine the product warranty accruals
are significantly affected by the historical percentage of warranty
claims costs to sales. Over the last five fiscal years, this loss
experience percent has varied by approximately plus or minus
.| percent, compared to the average warranty costs to sales
percentage during that period. Holding other assumptions constant,
if this estimated cost experience percentage were to increase or
decrease .1 percent, the warranty accrual at October 31, 2006
would increase or decrease by approximately $25 million,




Postretirtement Benefit Obligations
Pension obligations and ather postretirement employee
benefit (OPEB) obligations are based on various assumptions
used by the company’s actuaries in calculating these amouns.
These assumptions include discount rates, health care cost trend
rates, expected teturn on plan assets, compensation increases,
retirement rates, mortality rates and other factors. Actual results
that differ from the assumptions and changes in assumptions
affect future expenses and obligations.

The pension net assets recognized on the balance sheet
at Qctober 3t, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $1,945 million,
$1,986 million and $1,894 million, respectively. The OPEB
liabilities on these dates were $1,985 nullion, $2,455 million and
$2,623 million, respectively. The decreases in the OPEB liability
on the balance sheet during 2006 and 2005 were primarily
related to voluntary company contributions to plan assets.

The effect of hypothetical changes to selected assumprions
on the company’s major U. 8. retirement benefit plans would
be as follows in millions of dollars:

October 31, 2006 2007
Increase Increase
Percentage (Decrease) (Decrease)
Assumptions Change PBO/APBO* Expense
Pension
Discount rate™ vvvvcvorrricrons -0 $ (304)/432 $ (2626
Expected return
ON ASSBIS. oo reverereemeervniens +-9 (39)/39
QPEB
Discount rate™” ...cooovvcvencrenn H-B {329)/365 {49)/51
Expected retum
ON A58E1S...overrniarnrnns +-5 (010
Health care cost
trend rate™ oo #-1.0 657/(583) 153/(135)

* Projected benelit obtigation {PBO} for pension plans and accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation (APBO} for OPEB plans.
** Pretax impact on service cost, interest cost and amortization of gains or losses.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses represents an estimate of the
losses expected from the company's receivable portfolio.

The level of the allowance is based on many quantitative and
qualitative facrors, including historical loss experience by
product category, portfolio duration, delinquency trends,
economic conditions and credit risk quality. The adequacy

of the allowance is assessed quarterly. Different assumptions or
changes in econoniic conditions would result in changes to the
allowance for credit losses and the provision for credit losses.

The total allowance for credit losses at October 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $217 million, $194 nullion and $201 m:llion,
respectively. The increase in 2006 was primarily due to credit
conditions in certain foreign operations and growth in the
receivable portfolio.

The assumptions used in evaluating the company’s
exposure to credit losses involve estimates and significant
judgment. The historical loss experience on the receivable
portfolios represents one of the key assumptions involved in
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determining the allowance for credit losses. Over the last five
fiscal years, the average loss experience has fluctuated between
2 basis points and 15 basis points in any given fiscal year over
the applicable prior period. Holding other estimates constant,
a 5 basis point increase or decrease in estimated loss expertence
on the receivable portfolios would result in an increase or
decrease of approximately $10 million to the allowance for
credit losses at October 31, 20006,

Operating Lease Residual Values

The carrying value of equipment on operating leases is affected
by the estimated fair values of the equipment at the end of the
lease (residual values). Upon termination of the lease, the
equipment is either purchased by the lessee or sold to a third
party, in which case the company may record a gain or a loss
for the difference between the estimated residual value and
the sales price. The residual values are dependent on current
economic conditions and are reviewed quarterly. Changes in
residual value assumptions would affect the amount of
depreciation expense and the amount of investment in
equipment on operating leases.

The total operating lease residual values at October 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 were §917 million, $812 nullion and
$803 million, respectively. The increases in 2006 and 2005
were primarily due to the higher levels of operating leases.

Estimates used in determining end of lease market values
for equipment on operating leases significantly impact the
amount and timing of depreciation expense. If future market
values for this equipment were to decrease 5 percent from the
company’s present estimates, the total impact would be to
increase the company’s annual depreciation for equipment on
operating leases by approximately $15 million.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK INFORMATION

The company is naturally exposed to various interest rate and
foreign currency risks. As a result, the company enters into
derivative transactions to manage certain of these exposures that
arise in the normal course of business and not for the purpose of
creating speculative positions or trading. The company’s credit
operations manage the relationship of the types and amounts of
their funding sources to their receivable and lease portfolio in
an effort to diminish risk due to interest rate and foreign
currency fluctuations, while responding to favorable financing
opportunities. Accordingly. from time to time, these operations
enter into interest rate swap agreements to manage their interest
rate exposure. The company also has foreign currency exposures
at sonie of its foreign and domestic operations related to buying,
selling and financing in currencies other than the local currencies.
The company has entered into agreements related to the
management of these currency transaceion risks. The credit nsk
under these interest rate and foreign currency agreements is not
considered to be significant.




Interest Rate Risk

Quarterly, the company uses a combination of cash flow models
to assess the sensitivity of its financial instruments with interest
rate exposure to changes in market interest rates. The models
calculate the effect of adjusting interest rates as follows.

Cash flows for financing receivables are discounted at the
current prevailing rate for each receivable portfolio. Cash flows
for marketable securities are primarily discounted at the treasury
yield curve. Cash flows for borrowings are discounted at the
treasury yield curve plus a market credit spread for similarly
rated borrowers. Cash flows for securitized borrowings are
discounted at the industrial composite bond curve for similarly
rated borrowers. Cash flows for interest rate swaps are projected
and discounted using forecasted rates from the swap yield curve
at the repricing dates. The net loss in these financial instruments’
fair values which would be caused by increasing the interest
rates by 10 percent from the market rates at October 31, 2006
would have been approximately $14 million. The net loss from
decreasing the interest rates by 10 percent in 2005 would have
been approximately $39 million.

Foreign Currency Risk
In the Equipment Operations, it is the company’s practice
hedge significant currency exposures. Worldwide foreign
currency exposures are reviewed quarterly. Based on the
Equipment Operations’ anticipated and conumirted foreign
currency cash inflows and outflows for the next twelve months
and the foreign currency derivatives at year end, the company
estintates that a hypothetical 10 percent strengthening of the
U.S. dollar relative to other currencies through 2007 would
decrease the 2007 expected net cash inflows by $32 million.
At last year end, a hypothetical 10 percent strengthening of the
U.S. dollar under similar assumptions and calculations indicated a
potential $48 million adverse effect on the 2006 net cash inflows.
In the Financial Services operations, the conipany’s
policy is to hedge the foreign currency risk if the currency of
the borrowings does not match the currency of the receivable
portfolic. As a result, a hypothetical 10 percent adverse change
in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to all other foreign
currencies would not have a material effect on the Financial
Services cash flows,
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Deere & Company is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. Deere & Company’s internal control system
was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed,
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2006,
using the coteria set forth in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Comnuttee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Comumission. Based on that assessment,
management believes that, as of October 31, 2006, the company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective.

The company’s independent registered public accounting
firmy has issued an audit report on management’s assessment of
the company’s internal control over financial reporting.

This report appears below.

December 18, 2006

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACGOUNTING FIRM

Deere & Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Deere & Company and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
Qcrober 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related statements of
conselidated income, changes in consolidated stockholders’
equity and consolidated cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended October 31, 2006. We also have audited
management’s assessment, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
issed by the Commirttee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessinent of the effectiveness of internal control oveér fimancial
reporting. Qur respounsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements, an opiition on management’s assessment,
and an opmion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement and
whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Gur audit of financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting prnciples used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
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the overall financial statement presentation, Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, and eftected by the company’s
board of directors, managentent, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies.and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the conpany are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisitton, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effective-
ness of the internal control over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects, the
financial posicion of the Company as of Qctober 31, 2006 and
2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2006, 1n
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also in our opinion, management’s
assessment that the Company mainained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of Octaber 31, 2006, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of October 31, 2006, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission,

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, [llinois
December 18, 2006




DEeEre & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME
For the Years Ended October 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In millions of dollars and shares except per share amounts)

2006 2005 2004
Net Sales and Revenues _ ) -
NEE SAIES ... evereeiees et ettt ee et et ettt eeeeas s et e anas At s en e e s e s et emens et et en s st eranenrae e e $19,884.0 $19,401.4 $17673.0
1,776.8 1,439.5 1,195.7
487.0 349.9 335.5
0 OO 221478 21,190.8 19,204.2
Costs and Expenses
COSTOF SAIBS ..ot ettt e et es et ettt ssa ettt a st e et 15,362.0 15,179.3 13,582.3
Research and development expensss.............. 725.8 677.3 6116
Selling, administrative and general expenses ... 2,323.9 2,086.1 1,984.1
Interest expense ..o, 1,017.5 761.0 592.1
Other operating expenses ....................... 544.8 3806 3335
TOMAL ottt ettt £t eet st e emenee s e neeren e 19,9740 19,084.3 17103.6
Incame of Consolidated Group before INCOME TAXES ... s 2173.8 2,106.5 2,100.6
ProviSion fOr BCOME AAXES ....cvivoiiisiiiere ettt ier ettt et s s bbb st sr e e e set b e bR e b et e nr e er e s e et asabas 7416 698.6 703.1
Income of ConsSoldated GIOUP ...................ccooooo ittt eese st 1,432.2 14079 1,397.5
Equity in Income of Unconsolidated Affiliates
Credit 3 B .6
Other 207 55 3
Total 21.0 6.1 9
Income from Continuing OPerations ... 1,453.2 1,414.0 1,398.4
Income from Discontinued Operations .........................c.c.coovi i e 2406 328 7
NEEICOMIE ..o ettt en s en oo ee e ee s een s reeen s ns s eesneens $ 16038 $ 1,446.8 $ 1,406.1
Per Share Data
Basic:
CONTNUING OPBIALONS ... .o v ecireress s s brare s e s e vomtaesesssesesestatata e ror s e84t eeceeemsta st se e resnbeb et eseromssssassereseresesians $ 6.23 3 5.81 $ 5.66
DiSCOMUNUBA BPEIAIONS. ..o eev ettt sttt e ee et et et 44t b ettt e e e e et bbb emes e e nbamareneeeens 1.03 4 03
NBEINCOMIB. cocvuvri ettt ettt ettt et se bttt es et et et en st eres e e $ 7.26 3 5.95 $ 5.69
Diluted: :
CONtiNUING OPEIAHONS ...ttt ee e ee et ee e ee et enaeae et eren $ 616 $ 574 $ 5.53
DISCONUNUBT ODEIAHONG. ... ee e iv it s e et et erseetar e et ecastsre st ee et eresbe st erset et atesta st et tetbrtar s tatare st asn e atenes 1.02 13 .03
NBE INCOITIB. o1 vcvv et et e et e eeeme s ee et eee e se e eee s eneeems e ee e eseeeeseeneseen e eens s eeeneseeens $ 718 $ 587 $ 5.56
DIVIHENAS GBEIATEE ..ottt et nen ettt en et en b ben e $ 1.56 5 1,21 $ 1.06
Average Shares Qutstanding
BAGIC 1.ttt bbbt bbb AR bbb bbb bbb 2334 2433 2472
DHIUEBE 1ot ettt ettt e bt ettt emme ettt r ettt eae et b et et ete st e s s s ene et st arsreemnes 2358 246.4 2531

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEErE & COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As of October 31, 2006 and 2005
{In millions of dollars except per share amounts)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable SECUMLIES ..ovvvvvevvvviviieveriiraeenens

Receivables from unconsolidated affiliAtES ... it
Trade accounts and notes recaivable - net
Financing receivables - net ...
Restricted fiNANGING rECEIVANIES - MBL. ... .o eveeecerrrrer et remess st et
BT TECEIVADIES .ottt e e st bbb s ee sy b e R ALY H bR R R bR R bbbt bbb
Equipment on operating laases - net
INVENOMES v,
Property and equipment - net
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates....
GOOWIll ...
Other intangible assets - net............
Prepaid pension COSIS. ..o e e e
(TS g LT TP OU OOV
Deferred income 1axes..........oovveeeen
DEIBITEA CHATTES  ....vvoeveveeeees i emesseeseast st es b s ess e ke b b s s bR
Assets of diSCONNUEL QPBTALIINS .......cceer et ierieeccrre e

T AL A S S B S . oottt ee et e e b e b e £t et b e bt b e AR RS R AR et et R e e Re Rt Re PR e h b bt

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
SOM-EBIME DOITOWINGS . v evveveres sttt es e reesems e rees s s rcecaen et bR R SR8 SR RS 5 s 58emdEERsEbs
Payahles to unconsolidated affiliates
Accounts payable and accrued expenses.........

ACCTUBT LANES cveveveeerirvereeeeessrestesssmestasestessesesremseesassebomns e s esssbesbabaeeebe s

Deferred INCOME FAKES ..o iveivieeee e vbiriies e ee ettt ence et

Long-term borrowings

Retirament benefit accruals and other HaDiliES........co. v

Liabilities of diSCONHNUEE OPEIRHONS . ...vevevreerereccerie e e et rares e
TORAN TBBIIEES o oeveveeeee e eee et s eemeererere e se st eserer e b e b e s srsess b et et s s pesessbea s eseses et eba s eserrs e esesesasnmm st sb e b b e sr s

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Commen stock, $1 par value (authorized — 600,000,000 shares;

Issued — 268,215,602 shares in 2006 and 2005}, at Stated VaILE......cocvwie e
Common stock in treasury, 40,982,540 shares in 2006 and 31,343,892 shares in 2005, at cost ...
Unamortized restricted stock compensation
Retained Barmings...co..cvvvieeeeeeeeeereiececseens

Minimum pension liability adfUSIMENT ..o s
Cumulative translation A0JUSIMBNT.........coc. e s
Unrealized gain 0 QEIMVALIVES .........ovvrrieriitieris sttt bbb
Unrealized Qain 071 IMVESITIENES. ...\ vueveeer et siasemsess s res e ress s a0

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total stockhelders' equity ...,

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ EQUILY ... e s

2006

$ 16875
1,816.7
222
3,0377
14,004.0
23708
448.2
1,493.9
1,957.3
2,763.6-
124.0
1110.0
56.4
26424
4656
582.2
1379

$ 34,7204

$ 81212
310
44828
152.5

6449
11,584.0
2,792.8

272292

2.212.0
(2.673.4)
(8.9)
7,886.8
7.416.9

(87.6)
150.3
6.8
48
74.3

7,491.2

$ 347204

2005

$ 22582
21691
18.4
3NT8
12,869.4
1,457.9
5230
1,3356
2.134.9
2,343.3
106.7
1,088.5
18.3
2.662.7
419.8
628.1
133.8
351.3

$33636.8

e —

$§ 68838
140.8
43209
214.3

82.7
11,7388
32323
181.7

26,785.3

20817

(1,743.5)
(16.4)

6.556.1

68779

{(108.9)
70.6
6.2
57

(26.4)

‘ 6.851.5

$ 33,6368

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEeere & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended October 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{In millions of dollars)

2006 2005 2004
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NBLINCOME. 111ttt et e bbb s bbb as bbb bbbt s § 1,693.8 $ 14468 $ 1,406.1
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for doubtfUl FECEIVADIBS ..o et e rent sttt et 65.9 26.1 514
Provision for depreciation and amOrtiZation..............cv ettt e reenesee 691.4 636.5 621.0
Share-based compensation expense 90.7 4.5 8.2
Gain 0N the SAlE Of A DUSINESS .....o.oovivvrriiiiiir et ettt ettt ettt sttt nn s (356.0}
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated affiliales ... 18.5) (4.1) 20.7
Provision {Credit) for defermrad iNCOME tAXES .........cieeer v et re e ene et naen e 15.8 (49.3) 385.0
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade, notes and financing receivables relatad to sales of equUIPMENt ........oov oo (703.9) (468.6) {863.7)
IRVENEOMES <. cv.v et ettt sttt en e es st et eamet e eeeeen {78.0) {324.1) {501.3}
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 155.3 336.9 8727
Retirement benefit accruals/prepaid pension costs (400.0) (312.0) (1,245.7)
DHNBT covvoev v caos s ek ettt e es s a3 seee e Se RSttt e ettt one e reen (183.3) (86.1) (258.3)
Net cash provided by OPErating ACHVITES. .........ovrcr et 973.2 1,216.6 496.1
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Colections Of TECBIVANIES. ... e et ees sttt 92749 8,076.5 7611.6
Proceeds from sales of financing reCEIVAIIES..........ccvevirs et srssssasessssesssssssssss s rassasss s sssssssassssnne 108.0 55.2 2,206.8
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities.... 3,006.0 1,085.0 66.7
Proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases ............ 310.9 3991 4444
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash sold ................ 4401 50.0 90.6
Cost of receivables acquired ..o {10,451.0) (10,488.8) (10,493.5)
Purchases of marketable securities ......... (2,565.6) (3,276.3) {79.6)
Purchases of property and EQUIDMENT ...ttt et sb s et en bbb st {(766.0) (512.6) (363.8)
Cost 0f OErating 1BASES ACAUITEN. .....eveeeve vttt ee ettt ettt (417.4) (342.0) (290.6)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired.........ccccococoev.ee.. (85.7) (169.7) (192.9)
Increase in receivables from unconsolidated affiliales...........ocooeiieicie e (68.7)
OB L.ttt et bR R bR ARt s s n e (33.1) (29.6) (1}
Net cash used for iNVEStING ACHVIIES ... e (1,148.9) (5173.2) (1,068.1)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase (decrease} in SNOM-EIM BOTTOWINGS ..........oco.ovv i enbe bt s bbbt 1,208.7 1,814.3 (356.0)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 31402 3,805.4 2,189.5
Payments of long-term BOOWINGS ..........covvveeeeeeeee e (3,520.6) (1,508.7) (2,312.7)
Proceeds from issuance of common SI0CK. ... connnnns 3276 153.6 250.8
REPUIChAses Of COMMON SLOCK ....vceivi ittt bbbt bt s (1,299.3) (918.9) (183.1)
DHVITENGS DAI.........c.commeiiiiii e e e e bbb eSS s b b (348.4) (289.7) (246.8)
Excess 1ax henefits from share-based compensation 85.6
OBDBT e ettt et {10.6) (1.9) {4)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing aCtVILIES......coccv.vver e s seneneese {416.8) 3,053 (668.5)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash EQUIValENES ..o 218 (19.4) 381
Net Decrease in Cash and Gash EQUIvalents .....................c.coceecreecneiicn s e e (570.7} (922.9) (1,203.4)
Cash and Gash Equivalents at Beginning of Year....................c..coco oo 2,258.2 31811 4,384.5
Cash and Gash EQUIVAENtS AL END 0F YEAF.............co..ovoeeeoeeeeeceeeeetes oo ene e en s nnen $ 16875 $ 2,258.2 $ 31811

The notes to consolicated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEERE & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended October 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

{In millions of dollars}

Balance October 31,2003 .............ccocccceinnn

Comgprehensive income
NELINCOME. ...cveiicee et
Other comprehensive income
Minimum pension liability adjustment..............
Cumulative translation adjustment .......
Unrealized gain on derivatives.........c.c..coivn
Unrealized gain on investments............o.e...

Total comprehensive income................cc.......

Repurchases of common stock ......c....ooeevnciecnnnn
Treasury Shares relssued ...
Dividends declared
Other stockholder transactions................c....oveeeceeee

Balance October 31,2004 ................c..ccoovveveeee

Comgrehensive income
NELINCOME vovvirr s s s
Other comprehensive income (l0ss)
Minimum pension liability adjustment.............
Cumulative translation adjustment ..................
Unrealized gain on derivatives.......ccc.cocovns
AUnrealized l0ss on investmentS ...

Total comprehensive income......................

Repurchases of common Stock ..o
Treasury Shares reissued ... ..covverevvnsseneeeeas
Dividends declared
Other stockholder fransactions..........cocvevvveceemnivenns

Balance October 31,2005 ..............c.ccooeeveeen

Comprehensive income
NEEINCOME (.ot e
Other comprehensive income {loss}
Minimum pension liability adjustment..............
Cumulative translation adjustment .........ccces
Unrealized gain on derivatives...............cceens
Unrealized loss on invastments ......cocorvivveneee

Total comprehensive income......................

Repurchases of commMOEnN SLOCK ... viiivirieeeee
Treasury shares reissued ... v
Dividends declared
Other stockholder transactions

Balance October 31,2006 ...................ccvennie

Unamortized Other
Total Common Treasury Restricted Retained Comprehensive
Equity Stock Stock Stock Earnings Income (Loss)
$4,0021 $1,987.8 § (1,141.4) $ (58) $ 43295 $ (1,368.0)
1,406.1 1,406.1
1,020.8 1,020.8
88.3 88.3
16.0 16.0
2 2
25314
(1931} 1193.1)
2941 2941
(262.2) (262.2)
205 55.7 (6.9) (28.3)
6,392.8 2.043.5 (1,040.4) {12.7) 5,4451 (42.7)
1,446.8 1,446.8
(51.7) {(51.7)
61.5 61.5
12.6 12.6
(6.1) (6.1)
1,463.1
(918.9) (918.9)
215.8 2158
(293.2) (293.2)
(8.1) 38.2 (3.7 (42.6}
6,851.5 20817 {1,743.5) (16.4) 6,556.1 (26.4)
1,693.8 1,693.8
21.3 21.3
79.7 79.7
B B
{9 {9)
1,794.5
(1,299.3) (1,299.3)
369.4 369.4
(363.4) (3634)
138.5 130.3 79 3
$ 7491.2 $2.212.0 $(2,673.4) $ (85) $ 78868 3 743

The notes to consclidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are significant accounting policies in addition to those
included in other notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements represent the consolidation
of all companies in which Deere & Company has a controlling
nterest. Deere & Company records its investment in each
unconsolidated affiliated company {generally 20 to 50 percent
ownership) at its related equity in the net assets of such affiliate.
Orther investments (less than 20 percent ownership) are recorded
at cost. Consolidated retained earnings at October 31, 2006
include undistributed earnings of the unconsolidated affiliates

of 854 million. Dividends from unconsolidated affiliates were
$3 million in 2006, $2 million in 2005 and $22 million in 2004
(see Note 8).

Certain special purpose entities (SPEs) related to the
secunitization of financing receivables for secured borrowings,
which are variable interest entities (VIEs), are consolidated
since the company is the primary beneficiary for these VIEs.
Certain other SPEs related to the securitization and sale of
financing receivables, which are also VIEs, are not consolidated
since the company does not control these entities, and they
either meet the requirements of qualified special purpose entities,
or the company is not the primary beneficiary. In addition,
the specified assets in these unconsolidated VIEs related to
securitizations are not the only source of payment for specified
liabilities or other interests of these VIEs and, therefore, do not
require consolidation (see Note 12),

Structure of Operations
Certain information in the notes and related commentary are
presented in a format which includes data grouped as follows:

Eguipment Operations — Includes the company’s agricul-
tural equipment, commercial and consumer equipment and
construction and forestry operations with Financial Services
reflected on the equity basis except for the health care operations,
which are reported on a discontinued basis (see Note 2).

Financial Services — Includes the company’s credit and
certain miscellaneous service operations with the health care
operations reported on a discontinued basis.

Consolidared — Represents the consolidation of the
Equipment Operations and Financial Services with the health
care operations reported on a discontinued basis. References to
“Deere & Company” or “the company” refer to the entire
enterprse.

Use of Estimates in Financial Staternents

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
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Revenue Recognition

Sales of equipmient and service parts to dealers are recorded
when title and all risk of ownership are transferred to the
independent dealer based on the agreement in effect with the
dealer, In the U.S. and most international locations, this transfer
occurs primarily when goods are shipped to the dealer. In Canada
and some other international locations, certain goods are shipped
to dealers on a consignment basis under which title and risk of
ownership are not transferred to the dealer. Accordingly, in
these locations, sales are not recorded until a retail customer

has purchased the goods. In all cases, when a sale is recorded by
the company, no significant uncertainty exists surrounding the
purchaser’s obligation to pay. No right of return exists on sales
of equipment. Service parts returns are estimable and accrued at
the time a sale is recognized. The company makes appropriate
provisions based on experience for costs such as doubtful
receivables, sales incentives and product warranty.

Financing revenue is recorded over the lives of the related
receivables using the interest method. Deferred costs on the
ongination of financing receivables are recognized as a reduction
in finance revenue over the expected lives of the receivables
using the interest method. Income from operating leases is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the scheduled lease terms.
Sales Incentives
At the tine a sale to a dealer is recognized, the company records
an estimate of the future sales incentive costs for allowances
and financing programs that will be due when the dealer sells
the equipment to a retail customer. The estimate is based on
historical data, announced incentive programs, field inventory
levels and settlement volumes.

Product Warranties

At the time a sale to a dealer is recognized, the company records
the estimated future warranty costs. These costs are usually
estimated based on historical warranty claims (see Note 22).
Securitization of Receivables

Certain financing receivables are periodically transferred to SPEs
in securitization transactions (see Note 12). For securitizations
that qualify as sales of receivables, the gains or losses from the
sales are recognized i the period of sale based on the relative
fair value of the portion sold and the portion allocated to
retained interests. The retained interests are recorded at fair
value estimated by discounting future cash flows, Changes in
these fair values are recorded after-tax in other comprehensive
income n unrealized gain or loss on investmens. Qther-than-
temporary impairmens are recorded in net income,

For securitizations that qualify as collateral for secured
borrowings, no gains or losses are recognized at the time of
securitization. These receivables remain on the balance sheet
and are classified as “Restricted financing receivables - net.”
The company recognizes finance income over the lives of
these receivables using the interest method.




Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs related to the sales of the company’s
equipment are included in cost of sales.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. This expense
was $165 million in 2006, $157 million in 2005 and $151 million
in 2004,

Depreciation and Amortization

Property and equipment, capitalized software and other
intangible assets are depreciated over their estimated useful

lives generally using the straight-line method. Equipment on
operating leases is depreciated over the tenms of the leases using
the straight-line method. Property and equipment expenditures
for new and revised products, increased capacity and the
replacement or major renewal of significant items are capitalized.
Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
generally charged to expense as incurred.

Receivables and Allowances

All financing and trade receivables are reported on the balance
sheet at outstanding principal adjusted for any charge-ofts,

the allowance for credit losses and doubtful accounts, and any
deferred fees or costs on originated financing receivables.
Allowances for credit losses and doubtful accounts are
maintained in amounts considered to be appropriate in relation
to the receivables outstanding based on collection experience,
economic conditions and credit risk quality.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill

The company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets
(including property and equipment, goodwill and other
intangible assets) when events and circumnstances warrant such a
review. Goodwill is also reviewed for impairment by reporting
unit annually. If the carrving value of the long-lived asset is
considered impaired, a loss is recognized based on the amount by
which the carrying value exceeds the fair marker value of the asset.
Derivative Financial Instruments

It is the company’s policy that derivative transactions are
executed only to manage exposures ansing in the normal course
of business and not for the purpose of creating speculative
positions or trading. The company's credit operations manage
the relationship of the types and amounts of their funding sources
to their receivable and lease portfolio in an effort to diminish
risk due to interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations, while
responding to faverable financing opportunities. The company
also has foreign currency exposures at some of its foreign and
domestic operations related to buying, selling and financing in
currencies other than the local currencies.

All derivatives are recorded ar fair value on the balance
sheet. Each derivative is designated as either a cash flow hedge
or a fair value hedge, or remains undesignated. Changes in the
fair value of derivatives that are designated and effective as cash
flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income and
reclassified to the income statement when the effects of the
item being hedged are recognized in the income statement.
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Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
effective as fair value hedges are recognized currently in net
income and offset to the extent the hedge was effective by the
fair value changes in the hedged item. Changes in the fair value
of undesignated hedges are recognized currently in the income
statement. All ineffective changes in derivative fair values are
recognized currently in net income.

All designated hedges are formally documented as to the
relationship with the hedged item as well as the nsk-management
strategy. Both at inception and on an ongoing basis the hedging
instrument is assessed as to its effectiveness, when applicable.

If and when a dervative is determined not to be highly
effective as a hedge, or the underlying hedged transaction is no
longer likely to occur, or the derivative is terminated, the hedge
accounting discussed above s discontinued and any past or future
changes in the denivative’s fair value that will not be effective

as an offset to the income effects of the item being hedged are
recognized currently in the income statement (see Note 27).
Foreign Currency Translation '
The functional currencies for most of the company’s foreign
operations are their respective local currencies. The assets and
liabilities of these operations are translated into U.S. dollars at
the end of the period exchange rates, and the revenues and
expenses are translated at weighted-average rates for the period.
The gains or losses from these translations are included in other
comprehensive income, which is part of stockholders’ equity.
Gains or losses from transactions denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the subsidiary involved
and foreign exchange forward contracts and options are
included in net income or other comprehensive income as
appropriate. The total foreign exchange pretax net gain (loss)
for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2 million, ${7} million and

${26) million, respectively.

New Accounting Standards Adopted

In the first quarter of 2006, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, using
the modified prospective method of adoption, which does not
require restatement of prior periods. The revised standard
eliminated the intrinsic value method of accounting for share-
based employee compensation under APB Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, which the company
previously used. The revised standard generally requires the
recognition of the cost of employee services for share-based
compensation based on the grant date fair value of the equity
or liability instruments issued. The effect of adoption of the
new standard in 2006 was an additional expense of $75 million
pretax, or $47 million after-tax ($.20 per share, basic and diluted).
Also under the new standard, excess income tax benefits related
to share-based compensation expense that must be recognized
directly in equity are considered financing rather than operating
cash flow activities. The amount of financing cash flows for
these benefits in 2006 was $86 million.




In the first quarter of 2006, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 151, Inventory Costs. This Statement clarifies
that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling
costs and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as
current-period charges. It also requires that allocation of fixed
production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on
the normal capacity of the production facilities, The adoption
of this Statement did not have a material effect on the company’s
financial position or net income.

At October 31, 2006, the company adopted FASB
Interpretation (FIN} No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations. This Interpretation relates to legal
obligations associated with retirement of tangible long-lived
assets that result from the acquisition, construction, or normal
operations of the asset. Under this standard, an accrual is
required for these legal asset retirement obligations in which
the timing or method of settlement is conditional on future
events that may or may not be within the control of the entiry.
The accrual is recorded as an increase in the cost basis of the
related property and recognized in expense over the useful life
of the asset. The adoption of this Interpretation did not have
a material effect on the company’s financial position or net
income. The pro forma effects on all vears presented were
also not material.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154, Accounting
Changes and Error Cormrections. This Statement requires
voluntary changes in accounting principles to be recorded
retrospectively for prior periods presented rather than a
cumulative adjustment in the current period. This treatment
would also be required for new accounting pronouncements

if there are no specific transition provisions. The accounting for
changes in estimates in the current period and the accounting
for errors as restatements of prior pertods has not changed.

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments,

This Statement primarily resolves certain issues addressed in
the implementation of FASB Statement No. 133 concerning
beneficial interest in securitized financial assets. In March 2006,
the FASB issued Statement No. 156, Accounting for Servicing
of Financial Assets. This Statement clarifies the criteria for
recognizing servicing assets and liabilities, requires these items
to be initially measured at fair value and permits subsequent
measurements on either an amortization or fair value basis.
The effective date of these Statements is the beginning of fiscal
year 2007. The adoption of these Statements is not expected
to have a matenal effect on the company's financial position

ot net income.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements. This Statement defines fair value
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. These
methods will apply to other accounting standards, which use
fair value measurements and may change the application of
certain measurements used in current practice. The effective
date is the beginning of fiscal year 2009. The adoption is not
expected to have a material effect on the company’s financial
position or net income,

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 138,
Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans. This Statement requires retirentent

- benefit accruals or prepaid benefit costs on the balance sheet to
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be adjusted to the difference between the benefit obligations
and the plan assets at fair value. The offset to the adjustment is
recorded directly in stockholders’ equity net of tax. The amount
recorded in stockholders’ equity would represent the after-tax
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and unamortized prior
service costs, which have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements (see Note 5). This Statement also requires
all benefit obligations and plan assets to be measured at fiscal
vear end. The effective date for the funded status adjustment

is the end of fiscal year 2007 and the year-end measurement
date is fiscal year 2009. Prospective application is required.

At Octrober 31, 2006, the effect of this Statement would have
decreased assets by approximately $400 million, increased
liabilities by approximately $1,800 million and decreased
stockholders’ equity by approximately $2,200 million after-tax.
The company does not expeet violations of any credit agreements
as a result of adopting this new standard.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainey in Income Taxes. This Interpretation
clarifies the recognition for uncertain tax positions should be
based on a more-likely-than-not threshold that the tax position
will be sustained upon audit. The tax position is measured as
the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The effective
date is the beginning of fiscal year 2008 with the cumulative
effect reported as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings.
The company is currently reviewing the impact of this new
standard and has not determined the potential effect on the
financial statements.

Share-Based Compensation

In 2005 and prior years, the company used the intrinsic value
method of accounting for its plans in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.
No compensation expense for stock options was recognized
under this method since the options’ exercise prices were not
less than the market prices of the stock at the dates the options
were awarded. The stock-based compensation expense recog-
nized in earnings relates to restricted stock awards. For disclosure
purposes under FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, a binomial lattice option pricing
model was used in 2005 to calculate the “fair value™ of stock
options, replacing the Black-Scholes model that was used in
2004. The company believes the binomial model provides a
better estimate of the option's fair value. Based on these models,
the weighted-average fair values of stock options awarded during
2005 and 2004 were $19.97 and $12.40 per option. For the
pro-forma disclosure information, the compensation cost of the
stock options that vest from one to three years was recognized
on a straight-line basis over the three-year vesting period.




Pro forma net income and net inconte per share, as if the
fair value method in FASB Statement No. 123 had been used
for stock-based compensation, and the assumptions used were
as follows with dollars in millions except per share amounts:

2005 2004

Net income a8 108 ..v..cvevvrr v $1447 $1406
Add:
Stock-based employee compensation costs,

net of tax, included in NEtINCOME........ccovvvvrerriennn, 9 5
Less:
Stock-based employee compensation casts,

net of tax, as if fair value method had

DEEN APPIEE v (40} (31)
Pro forma et iNCOME .......covviirivvrinre e eeen s $1416  $1,380

Net income per shara:

Asreported — DASIC......cooe e e $ 569
Pro forma - basic.......... $ 5.58
As reported ~ diluted $ 556
Pra forma — diluted.........ocoooeeiieeee $ 547
Assumptions*
Risk-free interest rate ..o 3.8% 2.6%
Dividend yieid.... 1.6% 1.4%
Stock volatility............cco..... 26.4% 278%
Expected option life in years........cvvvvesrmesmrccesceees 1.9 3.2

Weighted-averages

Acquisitions
In June 2006, the company acquired Roberts Irrigation
Products, Inc., a manufacturer of high performance plastic micro
and drip irrigation products for the agricultural, nursery and
greenhouse market, headquartered in California. The cost of
the acquisition was $41 million, including a preliminary value
of $34 million for goodwill and other intangibies, which is tax
deductible. The approximate preliminary values assigned to the
other major assets and liabilities related to the acquisition were
%4 million of receivables, $4 million of inventory, $5 million
of property and equipment, $1 million of other assets and
$7 million of labilities. The entity is included in the company’s
agricultural equipment operations. The goodwill generated in
this acquisition was the result of the future cash flows and
related fair values of the entity acquired exceeding the fair values
of its identifiable assets and liabilities. Certain long-lived assets
including other intangibles are still being evaluated. The results
of these operations have been included in the company’s
financial statements since the date of the acquisition. The pro
forma results of operations as if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of the fiscal year would not differ significantly
from the reported results.

Certain adjustments were also made in 2006 to the
estimated fair values of assets recorded for acquisitions made
in 2005 based on final evaluations (see Note 17).

2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In February 2006, the company sold its wholly-owned
subsidiary, John Deere Health Care, Inc. thealth care operations),
to UnitedHealtheare for $512 million and recognized a gain
on the sale of $356 million pretax, or $223 million after-tax
{8.94 per share diluted, §.95 per share basic). These operations
and the gain on the sale have been reflected as discontinued
operations in the consolidated financial statements for all
periods presented.

The carrying amounts of the major classes of assets and
liabilities aggregated in discontinued operations on the consoli-
dated balance sheet at October 31 in millions of dollars follow:

2005

Assets

Marketable SECUMIES. ... ..o.ovv e e e $ 281
Other receivables........ovevvveveeeececie a8
Property and equipment.... 22
0131 OSSR TOUOUU PP 10
TOMAl ASEEES 111 veeerereeeeeeaer et sersbessn e s s s as s s nrnnns $ 351
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued BXPENSES.........oiiinii s $ 19
Health care claims and reServes™ ..o ovvcceerne e 73
TOMA BADINES ..o $ 192

* A partion of the health care claims and reserves of the health care operations was
reclassified to accounts payable and accrued expenses of the continuing aperations
for an incurred but not reported reserve related to the company’s continuing healih
care claims.

The revenue from discontinued operations on the
statement of consohidated mncome in 2006, 2005 and 2004
was $621 million, $740 million and $782 million and the
income before income taxes was $384 million, $49 million and
$13 million, respectively. The fees paid from the continuing
operations to the discontinued health care operations for
administering health care claims in 2006, 2005 and 2004
were $7 million, $21 million and $19 million, respectively.
The company will continue to pay fees to UnitedHealthcare
to administer health claims. The employee termination benefit
expense related to the discontinued operations in 2006 was
$8 million, with paymenss of $4 million and a remaining
liability at October 31, 2006 of $4 million. This expense was
recorded in “Income from Discontinued Operations.”

3. SPECIAL ITEMS

Restructuring

In January 2006, the company decided to close its forestry
manufacturing facility in Woodstock, Ontario, Canada and
consolidate the manufacturing into the company’s existing
Davenport and Dubugque, lowa facilities. This restructuring is
intended to reduce costs and further improve product delivery
times. The facility was included in the construction and
forestry segment.




In 2006, the total expense recognized in costs of sales
related to the closure was §44 million pretax, which included
$21 million for pension and other postretirement benefits;
$10 million for employee termination benefits; $6 million for
impairments and write-downs of property, equipment and
inventory; $5 million for relocation of production and
$2 million for other expenses, At October 31, 2006, there
were no remaining significant Liabilities or expenses related to
the restructuring. The pretax cash expenditures associated with
this closure were approximately $35 million.

Debt repurchase

In February 2006, the company announced a cash tender

offer of up to $500 million to repurchase outstanding notes.

An aggregate principal amount of $433 million was repurchased
1 2006 consisting of $144 million of 8.93% Debentures due
2019, $194 million of 7.85% Debentures due 2010 and

$95 million of 8-1/2% Debentures due 2022, The repurchase
of these notes for approximately $500 million resulted in an
expense of $70 million pretax in 2006, which was included

in other operating expenses.

4. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

For purposes of the statement of consolidated cash flows,

the company considers investments with purchased maturities
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Substantially all
of the company’s short-term borrowings, excluding the current
maturities of long-term borrowings, mature or may require
payment within three months or less.

The Equipment Operations sell most of their trade
receivables to Financial Services. These intercompany cash
flows are eliminated in the consolidated cash flows.

All cash flows from the changes in trade accounts and notes
receivable (see Note 10) are classified as operating activities in
the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows as these receivables
~ anise from the sale of equipment to the company's ¢ustoners.
Cash flows from financing receivables (see Note 11) that are
related to the sale of equipment to the company’s customers are
also included in operating activities. The remaining financing
receivables are related to the financing of equipment sold by
independent dealers and are included in investing activities.

The company had non-cash operating and investing
activities that were not included in the Statement of Consolidated
Cash Flows for the transfer of inventory to equipment under
operating leases of approximately $290 million, $256 million and
$208 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The company
also had accounts payable for purchases of property and
equipment of approximately $80 million, $35 million and
$44 million at October 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Cash payments for interest and income taxes consisted of
the following in millions of dollars:

2006 2005 2004
Interest:
Equipment Operations® ..., $ 457 § 377 § 357
Financial SBrviCes ...........cocccccommvrerenes 866 576 395
Intercompany eliminations* ...........c...... (296) {281 {241)
Consofidated..................cccocorrrvnr e $1027 & 672 § SN
Income taxes:
Equipment Operations .............ccccovvenn. $ 658 § 516 § 395

208 214 167
(165)  (183)  (138)

$ 700 § 547 § 424

" Inchudes interest compensation to Financlal Services for financing trade receivables.

Financial Services
Intercompany eliminations ...................

Consolidated. ............................ooco.co0,

5. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The company has several defined benefit pension plans
covering its U.S. employees and employees in certain foreign
countries. The company also has several defined benefit
health care and life insurance plans for retired employees in
the U.S. and Canada. The company uses an October 31
measurement date for these plans.

The wortdwide components of net periodic pension cost
and the assumptions related to the cost consisted of the following
in millions of dollars and in percents:

2006 2005 2004
Pensions
SEIVICE COSE ... $ 152 $ 144 § 130
IMEFEST COSE ..o e 475 452 454
Expected return on plan assets.................. (667) {684) (619)
Amortization of actuarial 08S .................... 110 96 49
Amortization of prior Service cost .............. 42 43 4
Special early-retirement benefits 2 3
Settlements/curtailments 18
Netcost.........cooooveeieceeccsii $ 132 § 5 3§ 58
Weighted-average assumptions
Discount rates 5.7% 9.5% 6.0%
Rate of compensation increase 3.8% 3.9% 3.9%
Expected long-term rates of return 8.5% 8.5% 8.5%

The worldwide components of net periodic postretirement
benefits cost and the assumptions related to the cost consisted of
the following in millions of dollars and in percents:

2006 2005 2004
Health care and life insurance
SBIVICE GOt .ooveveie e $§ 68 % B3I $ 99
IVEIEST COSE..ovvviveccce e 308 299 314
Expected returns on plan assets................. (128) (60) (52)
Amortization of actuarial 108 .............c....... 196 297 304
Amortization of prior service cost............... (132) (132) (129)
Special early-retirement benefits................ 1 2
Settlements/curtailmants...........coooevveeen. 2
Net oSt $ 315 § 487 § 538
Weighted-average assumptions
DISCOUNE TAES ... eeceieisvcvesinrereenne 6.0% 5.5% B.1%
Expected long-term rates of return............. 8.1% 8.5% 8.5%




A worldwide reconciliation of the funded status of the
benefit plans and the assumptions related to the obligations at
Qctober 31 in millions of dollars follow:

Health Care
and
Pensions Life Insurance

2006 2005 2006 2005
Change in benetit obligations
Beginning of year balance................... ${8,482) $(8,403} $(5,228) $(5,690)
SEIVICE COSE .. evvvvererrriinr s e (152) (144 (68) (83)
IMEESE COSE. . ecvvc s (475) 452y  (308)  {299)
Actuarial gain {1058} .....ccovvrvrecirinncns {202) (19} (326) 578
AMENdmENts........c.cocovvveveccnriiienns (13 6 12
Benefits paid.........cccovvervieiininieirrens 548 530 288 262
Health care subsidy receipts .............. (n
Special early-retirement benefits........ (2) (1)
SEHEmENtS. .....ccovcee e 58 2
Foreign exchange and other ............... (44) 19 (8) (8)
End of year balance ..o {8,751) (B482) (5654) (5228)

Change in plan assets {fair value)
Beginning of year balance.................
Actual return on plan assets....

8284 7636 1177 686
1,163 966 201 91

Employer contribution............. 68 202 798 657
Benefits paid............. (548) (530) (288) (262)
Setttements........ (58)

Foreign exchange and other.............. 18 11 5 5
End of year balance ... ocvvvcnne 8927 8284 1,893 1177
Plan obligation less than (more than)

PIAN BSSELS .....eoceerecrrcerreccnrenns 176 (198) (3,761) (4,051
Unrecognized aciuarial l08S..........o... 1,772 2186 1917 1,862
Unrecognized pricr service

{credit) COSt ..o 145 187 (141} (266)
Net amount recognized ................. 2093 2175 (1,985) (2,455)
Minimum pension

liabiiity adjustment ..o, {148) 189
Net asset {liability) recognized............ $ 1945 $1,986 $(1,985) $({2.455)
Amounts recognized in

balance sheet
Prepaid benefit cost.........ccorccerrrirnn $ 2642 $ 2663
Accrued benefit liability...........ocooovcenee (697}  (677) $(1,985) $(2,455)
Intangible @SSET.....oovvvevvironriniimineeeeenns 8 15
Accumulated pretax charge to

other comprehensive income......... 139 174
Net amount recognized .............ccoveveee $ 2093 § 2175 $(1,985) $(2455)
Weighted-average assumptions
DISCOUNE FAES ovvvivsrorvee e 5.7% 57%  59% 6.0%
Rate of compensation inciease ...  3.8%  3.8%

The total accumulated benefit obligations for all pension
plans at October 31, 2006 and 2005 was $8,322 million and
$8,037 million, respectively.

The accumulated benefit obligations and fair value of
plan assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets were $805 million and
$111 million, respectively, at October 31, 2006 and $831
million and $160 million, respectively, at October 31, 2005.

The projected benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets
for pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess
of plan assets were $927 million and $158 million, respectively,
at October 31, 2006 and $947 million and $204 million,
respectively, at October 31, 2005.

The benefits expected to be paid from the benefit plans,
which reflect expected future years of service, and the Medicare
subsidy expected to be received are as follows in millions of dollars:

Heafth Care Health Care
and Subsidy
Pensions Life Insurance Receipts”
2007 e $ 5539 $ 299 $ 16
569 319 19
571 337 22
580 353 29
598 369 28
3194 2,048 189

* Medicare Part D subsidy.

The company expects to contribute approximately $171
million to its pension plans and approximately $272 million to
its health care and life insurance plans in 2007, which include
direct benefit payments on unfunded plans, These expected
contributions also include voluntary contributions to the
U.S. pension plans of approximately $115 million and the
health care plans of approximately $225 million during 2007.

The annual rates of increase in the per capita cost of
covered health care benefits (the health care cost trend rates)
used to determine benefit obligations at October 31, 2006
were based on the trends for both pre - 65 and post - 65 age
groups due to the effects of Medicare on the post - 65 group.
This weighted-average composite trend rate for both groups
was assumed to be 8.1 percent for 2007, 7.1 percent for 2008,
6.1 percent for 2009, 5.4 percent for 2010 and 5.0 percent for
2011 and all future years. The obligations at October 31, 2005
assumed 8.0 percent for 2006 graded down evenly to 5.0 percent
for 2009 and all future years. An increase of one percentage
point in the assumed health care cost trend rate would
increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations at
October 31, 2006 by $669 million and the aggregate of service
and inrerest cost component of net periodic postretirement
benefits cost for the year by $49 million. A decrease of one
percentage point would decrease the obligations by $593 million
and the cost by $43 million.

The discount rate assumptions used to determine the
postretirement obligations at October 31, 2006 were based on
a hypothetical AA yield curve represented by a series of
annualized individual discount rates. Each bond issue underlying
the yield curve is required to have a rating of Aa or better by
Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. or a rating AA or better by
Standard & Poor’s. Prior to using this yield curve, the discount
rate assumptions for the postretirement expenses in 2005 and 2004

* and the obligations at October 31, 2004 were based on invest-
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ment yields available on AA rated long-term corporate bonds.




The following is the percentage allocation for plan assets
at October 31:

Pensiong Health Care

2006 2005 2006 2005*

EQuIly SECUMHES .....cvveee e 5%  62% 57% 44%
Debt securities ........coccceeevvveeieinans 20 18 28 42
Real estate.. 4 3 3 2
OthEr v 19 17 12 12

* Allocation atiected by a contribution at year end ternporarily held in debt securities.

The primary investment objective is to maximize the
growth of the pension and health care plan assets to meet the
projected obligattons to the beneficiaries over a long period of
time, and to do so int a manner thar is consistent with the
company’s eamings strength and risk tolerance. Asset allocation
policy is the most important decision in managing the assets and
it 1s reviewed regularly. The asset allocation policy considers
the company’s financial strength and long-term asset class risk/
return expectations since the obligations are long-term in nature.
On an on-going basis, the target allocations for pension assets
are approximately 57 percent for equity securities, 19 percent
for debt securities, 3 percent for real estate and 21 percent for
other and for health care assets are approximately 56 percent
for equity securities, 28 percent for debt securities, 3 percent for
real estate and 13 percent for other. The assets are well diversi-
fied and are managed by professional investiment firms as well
as by investment professionals who are company emplovees.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
reflects management’s expectations of long-term average rates
of return on funds invested to provide for benefits included in
the projected benefit obligations. The expected return is based
on the outlook for inflation, fixed income returns and equity
returns, while also considering historical returns, asset allocation
and investment strategy. Although not a guarantee of future
results, the average annual return of the company’s U.S. pension
fund was approximateiy 10 percent during the past ten years
and approximately 11 percent during the past 20 years.

The company has created certain Voluntary Employees
Beneficiary Association trusts (VEBAs) for the funding of
postretirement health care benefies. The future expected asset
returns for these VEBAs are lower than the expected return on
the other pension and health care plan assets due to investment
in a higher proportion of short-terin tiquid securities. These assets
are in addition to the other postretirement health care plan assets
that have been funded under Section 401(h) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code and maintained in a separate account in the
company’s pension plan trust.

See Note 25 for defined contribution plans related to
employee investment and savings.
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6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations by
taxing jurisdiction and by significant component consisted of the
following in millions of dollars:

2006 2005 2004

Current:

u.sS.:
Federal........oooemeveioeeeeeeeeeeve e, $448  $422 $109
SHALE .o 28 32 4
FOBION ..o 260 284 206
Total current ..o 736 738 319

Deferred:

Us.:
FEUBFAL ..o 3 24y 3
SHAE ..o 6 (17) 37
FOTBIGN 1o oo (3} 2 46
Total deferred ..o, 6 (39) 384

5742 3699 §$703

Based upon location of the company’s operations, the
consolidated income from continuing operations before income
taxes in the U8, in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1,431 million,
$1,226 million and $1,240 million, respectively, and in foreign
countries was $743 million, §881 million and $861 million,
respectively. Certain foreign operations are branches of
Deere & Company and are, therefore, subject to U.S., as well as
foreign income tax regulations. The pretax income by location
and the preceding analysis of the income tax provision by
taxing jurisdiction are, therefore, not directly related.

A comparison of the statutory and effective income tax
provision from continuing operations and reasons for related
differences in millions of dollars follow:

2006 2005 2004

U.S. federal income tax provision

at astatutory rate of 35 percent ... § 761 $ 737 § 735
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State and local income taxes, net of

federal income tax benafit ..., 22 10 27
Taxes on foreign activities ..., 8 ey (21
Nondeductitle costs and other-net...................... (49) 42y (38)

Provision forincome taxes......................... $ 742 % 699 $ 703

In October 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004
(the Act) was signed into law. The Act introduced a special one-
time dividends received deduction on the repatriation of certain
foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer (repatriation provision),
provided certain criteria are met. The deduction is 85 percent
of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated. During 2005, the
company recognized a tax benefit of approximately $15 million,
related to the repatriation of foreign earnings under the Act.

At October 31, 2006, accumulated earnings in certain
subsidiaries outside the U.S. totaled $942 million for which no
provision for U.S. income taxes or foreign withholding taxes
has been made, because it is expected that such earnings will be
reinvested overseas indefinitely. Determination of the amount
of unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unremitted
earnings 15 not practical.




Deferred income taxes arse because there are certain
items that are treated differently for financial accounting than
for income tax reporting purposes. An analysis of the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities at October 31 in millions of
dollars follows:

2006 2005
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Assets  LiaDilities  Assets  Liabilities

Other postretirement benefit

i (ool (1721 O $ 8% $ 997
Prepaid pension costs - net........... $ 845 $ 860
Accrua for sales allowances ......... 327 324
Tax over book depreciation............ 214 23
Accrual for employee benefits........ 185 185
Lease transactions ..........ccoveeee 144 154
Tax loss and tax credit

caryforwards ..o 132 93
Allowance for credit fosses............ 77 73
Minimum pension liability

adjustment........ccooveciiiinnn 51 65
Intercompany profit in inventory .... 51 37
Stock option compensation............ 26
Undistributed forgign earings....... 18 37
Other BMS v 208 103 157 59
Less valuation allowances............. (50) (25)
Deterred income tax

assets and liabilities $1842 $1,325 $1906 $1.341

Deere & Company files a consolidated federal income tax
return in the U.S., which includes the wholly-owned Financial
Services subsidiaries. These subsidiaries account for income
taxes generally as if they filed separate income tax returns.

At QOctober 31, 2006, certain tax loss and tax credit
carryforwards for $132 million were available with $81 million
expinng from 2007 through 2025 and 851 million with an
unlimited expiration date.

7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The major components of other income and other operating
expenses from continuing operations consisted of the following
in milliens of dollars:

2006 2005 2004

Other income
Revenues from Services.......ccoceeveeeveeve. $ 165 § 148 § 103
Investment INCOME ........cc.ovvveveereeececienen. a9 25
Securitization and servicing fee income ...... - 37 48 58
CNBI™ e 196 129 175

TOMED oo $ 487 $ 350 $ 336
Other operating expenses
Depreciation of equipment on

operating 18ases ........oovevceeceneneee. 3 268§ 237§ 238
Cost of services 127 96 55
Debt repurchase 70
DHRET v et 79 48 39

TOtAl e $ 545 § 381 § 333

* Includes $50 million gain from sales of receivables and $3C million gain from the
sale of a rental equipment company in 2004.

8. UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Unconsolidated affiliated companies are companies in which
Deere & Company generally owns 20 percent to 50 percent
of the outstanding voting shares. Deere & Company does not
control these companies and accounts for its investments in
them on the equity basis. The investments in these companies
primarily consist of Deere-Hitachi Construction Machinery
Corporation {50 percent ownership), Bell Equipment Limited
(32 percent ownership) and A&I Products (36 percent
ownership). The unconsolidated affiliated companies primanly
manufacture or market equipment. Deere & Company’s share of
the income of these companies is reported in the consolidated
income statement under “Equity in Inconte of Unconsolidated
Affiltates.” The investment in these companies is reported in
the consolidated balance sheet under “Investments in
Unconsolidated Affiliates.”

Combined financial information of the unconsolidated
affiliated companies in millions of dollars is as follows:

Operations 2006 2005 2004
SAIBS ..ot e $2062 $1983 $ 1798
NELINCOME.....coivvir e 54 14 2
Deere & Company's equity in :

NELINCOME ..ot s 21 ] 1
Financial Position 2006 2005
Total ASSEIS ... e $ 968 § 817
Total extermnal BOTTOWINGS ...v.cvvv v 86 119
Total NBE SSELS ....vivv v s s 293 271
Deere & Company's share of

the NEEBSSBES ..o 124 107

9. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

All marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale,
with unrealized gains and losses shown as a component of
stockholders” equity. Realized gains or losses from the sales of
marketable securities are based on the specific identification
method.

The amortized cost and fair value of marketable
securities for continuing operations at October 31 in millions
of dollars follow:

Amortized  Gross Gross
Cost  Unrealized Unrealized  Fair

) or Cost Gains Losses  Value

2006

U.S. government debt securities.... $ 363 ${(1y § 362

Municipal debt securities .............. 134 134

Corporate ¢debt securities.............. 549§ 1 550

Mortgage-backed debt securities.. 284 284

Asset backed securities................ 239 239

Other debt securities ................... 248 248

Marketable securities............... $1817 $1 $() $1817
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(continued)




Amortized  Gross Gross
Cost  Unrealized Unrealized  Fair
or Cost Gaing Losses  Value

2005

L.S. government debt securities.... $ 312 s § 3an
Municipal debt securities ... 141 141
Corporate debt securities............. 814 (2) gi2
Mortgage-backed debt securities.. 233 233
Asset backed securities ................ 422 (2) 420
(her debt securities ................... 252 252
Marketable securities............... g§2174 $(5 %2169

The contractual maturities of debt securities at Qctober
31, 2006 in millions of dollars follow:

Amartized Fair

Cost Value
DUE in ONe YBAr OF 855 ... $ 790 $ 790
Due after one through five years....... 631 631
" Due after five through 10 years..... 82 82
Due after 10 YBarS.....oc.c.oveoeeceeeeeeeeeeeeee e 314 314
Debt securities.................coooovovvoovooioeee e, $1817 $1817

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because some securities may be called or prepaid. Proceeds from
the sales of available-for-sale securitics from continuing
operations were $2,157 million in 2006, $917 million in 2005
and none in 2004. Realized gains were $.4 million and realized
losses were $4 million in 2006. Realized gains and losses were
not matenial i prior years. Unrealized gains and losses and the
increase (decrease) in net unrealized gains or losses were not
material in these three years. Unrealized losses that have been
continuous for over twelve months were not material.
Unrealized losses at October 31, 2006 and 2005 were primarily
the result of an increase in interest rates and were not recognized
in income due to the ability and intent to hold to maturity.
Losses related to impainment write-downs were not material.

10. TRADE ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts and notes receivable at October 31 consisted of
the following in millions of dollars:

2006 2005
Trade accounts and notes:
AGECUIUTAL ..o e e $1647 $1774
Commercial and consumer ral i
Construction and forestry .........cccooocovevvereeieennn, 680 643
Trade accounts and notes receivable-net............. $3038 §$ 3118

At October 31, 2006 and 2005, dealer notes included in
the previous table were $398 million in both years, and the
allowance for doubtful trade receivables was §62 million and
$54 million, respectively.

The Equipment Operations sell a significant portion of
newly oniginated trade receivables to the credit operations and

provide compensation to the credit operations at market rates of

interest for these receivables.

Trade accounts and notes receivable primarily arise from
sales of goods to dealers. Under the terms of the sales to dealers,
interest is charged to dealers on outstanding balances, from the

earlier of the date when goods are sold to retail customers by
the dealer or the expiration of certain interest-free periods
granted at the time of the sale to the dealer, until payment is
received by the company. Dealers cannot cancel purchases after
the equipment is shipped and are responsible for payment even
if the equipment is not sold to retail customers. The interest-
free periods are determined based on the type of equipment
sold and the time of year of the sale. These periods range from
one to twelve months for most equipment. Interest-free penods
may not be extended. Interest charged may not be forgiven

and interest rates, which exceed the prime rate, are set based

on market factors. The company evaluates and assesses dealers
on an ongoing basis as to their credit worthiness and generally
retains a security interest in the goods associated with these
trade receivables. The company is obligated to repurchase goods
sold to a dealer upon cancellation or termination of the dealer’s
contract for such causes as change in ownership, closeout of the
business or default. The company may also in certain circum-
stances repurchase goods sold to a dealer in order to satisfy a
request for goods from another dealer.

Trade accounts and notes receivable have significant
concentrations of credit risk in the agricultural, commercial and
consumer, and construction and forestry sectors as shown in the
previous table. On a geographic basis, there is not a dispropor-
tionate concentration of credit risk in any area.

11. FINANGING RECEIVABLES

Financing receivables at October 31 consisted of the following
i mullions of dollars:

2006 2005
Unrestricted/Restricted Unrestricted/Restricted
Retail notes:
Equipment;
Agricultural .................... § 7512 $2279 $6730 31405
Commercial and
CONSUMET ..covivriirnnns .23 1,212
Construction and
TOTeStrY. oo 2447 462 2,148 265
Regreational products......... 35 5
Total..oocices 11,225 2,74 10,141 1,670
Wholesale notes ..o 1,463 1,238
Revoiving charge accounts...... 1,582 1,508
Financing feases
(direct and sales-type)........ 927 856
Operating 10ans ......c..occvirnonne 379 384
Total financing receivables.. 15,576 2741 14217 1,670
Less:
Unearned finance income:
Equipment notes............ 1,306 359 1,098 204
Recreational product
(30107 SR 8 14
Financing leases ............ 114 104
Total....coccvecieine, 1,428 359 1,216 204
Allowance for doubtful
receivanles ... 144 1 132 8
Financing
receivables —net............. $14004 $2371 $12,869 $ 1458




Financing receivables have significant concentrations
of credit risk in the agricultural, commercial and consumer,
and construction and forestry sectors as shown in the previous
table. On a geographic basis, there is not a disproportionate
concentration of credit risk in any area. The company retains
as collateral a security interest in the equipment associated with
retail notes, wholesale notes and financing leases.

Financing receivables at October 31 related to the
company’s sales of equipment {(see Note 4} that were included
in the table above were unrestricted and consisted of the
following in millions of dollars:

2006 2005
Retail notes*:
Equipment:
AGUICUILIAL ..o $ 970
Commerclal and consumer ... 74
Construction and fOrestry ..o voniernnnerennnns 553
[ RO IOPPPRI 1,597
WIOIBSAIB NALES .ovvvvvvvieveessieriin i e ens s senrana 1,238
Sales-tyPE IBASES ...cccovie e e 439
TOMA .o e 3,274
Less:
Unearned finance income:
EQUIPMENE NGBS ... cnseen 260 196
Sales-type IBASES ..o 52 46
TOMAL ..o s 312 242
Financing receivables related to the
company’s sales of equipment........................ $3673 $3,032

" These retail notes generally arise from sales of equipment by company-owned
dealers or through direct sales.

Financing receivable installments, including unearned
finance income, at October 31 are scheduled as follows in
millions of dollars:

2006 2005
Unrestricted/Restricted Unrestricted/Restricted

Due in months:

012 e $ 7364 8 753 $ 6741 & 42
3175 707 2845 403

2,391 621 2,140 360

1522 461 1,409 300

876 180 837 164

248 19 245 22

$15576  $ 2741 $14.217 § 1,670

The maximum terms for retail notes are generally seven
years for agricultural equipment, seven years for commercial
and consumer equipment and five years for construction and
forestry equipment. The niaximum tenn for financing leases 1s
generally five years, while the average term for wholesale notes
is less than twelve months.

At Qctober 31, 2006 and 2005, the unpaid balances
of receivables previously sold by the credit operations were
£1,197 million and $2,019 million, respectively. The receivables
sold are collateralized by secunity interests in the related
equipment sold to customers. At October 31, 2006 and 2005,

worldwide financing receivables administered, which include
financing receivables previously sold but still administered,
totaled $17,572 million and $16,346 million, respectively.
Generally when financing receivables become approxi-
mately 120 days delinquent, accrual of finance income is
suspended and the estimated uncollectible amount is written
off to the allowance for credit losses. Accrual of finance income
is resumed when the receivable becomes contractually current
and collection doubts are removed. Investments in financing
receivables on non-accrual status at QOctober 31, 2006 and 2005
were §44 million and $74 million, respectively.
Total financing receivable amounts 60 days or more
past due were $45 million at Qctober 31, 2006, compared
with $34 million at October 31, 2005. These past-due
amounts represented .27 percent of the receivables financed
at October 31, 2006 and .24 percent at October 31, 2005.
The allowance for doubtful financing receivables represented
.94 percent and .97 percent of financing receivables outstanding
at October 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In addition, at
QOctober 31, 2006 and 2005, the company’s credit operations
had $194 million and $184 million, respectively, of deposits
withheld from dealers and merchants available for potential
credit losses. An analysis of the allowance for doubtful financing
receivables follows in millions of dollars:

2006 2005 2004

Balance, beginning of the year ... $ 140 § 145 § 149
Provision charged to operations............cee.. o 19 43
Amounis written off ... (39} (28) (37)
Other changes related to transfers for sefail

note sales and translation adjustments...... 3 4 {10)
Balance, end of theyear..................... $ 155 $ 140 $ 145

12. SECURITIZATION OF FINANCING REGEIVABLES

The company, as a part of its overall funding strategy, periodi-
cally transfers certain financing receivables (retail notes) into
special purpose entities (SPEs) as part of its asset-backed
securities prograins {securitizations) involving its retail notes.
For securitizations entered into prior to 2003, the structure of
these transactions is such that the transfer of the retail notes met
the criteria of sales in accordance with FASB Statement No. 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishment of Liabilities. Beginning in 2003, the transfer
of retail notes into new securitization transactions did not meet
the sales criteria of FASB Statement No. 140 and are, therefore,
accounted for as secured borrowings. SPEs utilized in securiti-
zations of retail notes differ from other entities included in the
company’s consolidated statements because the assets they hold
are legally isolated. For bankruptcy analysis purposes, the
company has sold the receivables to the SPEs in a true sale and
the SPEs are separate legal entities. Use of the assets held by the
SPEs is restricted by termis of the documents governing the
securitization transaction. Further information related to the
secured borrowings and sales of retail notes 1s provided below.




Secured Borrowings
Beginning in 2003, the company’s new securitizations of retail
notes were accounted for as secured borrowings. Retail notes
related to these programs were transferred to certain SPEs
which in turn issued debt to investors. The resulting secured
borrowings are included in short-term borrowings on the
balance sheet as shown in the following table. The securitized
retail notes are recorded as “Restricted financing receivables -
net” on the balance sheet. The total restricted assets on the
balance sheet related to these securitizations include the
restricted financing receivables less an allowance for credit
losses, and other assets representing restricted cash as shown in
the following table. In addition to the restricted assets shown in
the table, a reserve fund included in “Other receivables” refated
to retained interests for certain securitizations that qualified as
sales of receivables is also available as a credit enhancement
for securitizations related to certain secured borrowings.
The amounts of this reserve fund at October 31, 2006 and
2005 were $22 million and $42 million, respectively. The SPEs
supporting the secured borrowings to which the retail notes are
transferred are consolidated unless the company is not the
primary beneficiary or the SPE is a qualified special purpose
entity as defined in FASB Statenient No. 140,

The total components of consolidated restricted assets
related to secured borrowings in securitization transactions at
October 31 were as follows in millions of doflars:

2006 2005
Restricted financing receivables {retall notes)................. $2382 $1466
Allowance for credit 10S885.........oveeveeeeeeeevereeeseeeer, (11} (8)
ONEI BSSBES. ..o e et 82 69
Total restricted securitized assets.....oeervvvrverennn. $2453 $1,527

The components of the secured borrowings and other
liabilities related to these securitizations at October 31 were as
follows m millions of dollars:

2006 2005

ShOrt-TRIMm BOMTOWINGS .. .ovvvvccicie e $2403 $ 1,474
Accrued interest on bOrmOWINGS .......o.coocoooreerrian, 5 2

Total liabilities related to restricted securitized assets..... $2,408  $ 1,476

The secured borrowings related to these restricted
securitized retail notes are obligations that are payable as the
retail notes are liquidated. Repayment of the secured borrowings
depends primarily on cash flows generated by the restricted
assets and the reserve fund mentioned above. The consolidated
assets (restricted retail notes) relating to an SPE in which the
company is the primary beneficiary and, therefore, the SPE is
consolidated under FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised
December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,
were $1,147 million and $650 million at October 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. These restricted retail notes are included in
the restricted financing receivables related to securitizations
shown in the table above. At October 31, 2006, the maximum
remaining term of all restricted receivables was approximately
sIX years,
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Sales of Receivahles
Prior to 2005, the company periodically transferred certain
retail notes into SPEs as part of its securitization program in
transactions that were structured such that the transfer of the
retail notes met the criteria of sales in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 140. The SPEs issue asset-backed securities to
investors and use the proceeds of the debt issuance to pay for
the retail notes. However, the company retains certain interests
in the SPEs’ assets including interest-only strips and, in soine
cases, reserve accounts and subordinated certificates.
These retained interests are carried at estimated fair value in
“Other receivables” or “Other assets” on the balance sheet.
Gains or losses on sales of the receivables depended in part on
the previous carrying amount of the ftnancial assets involved in
the transfer, allocated between the assets sold and the retained
interests based on their relative fair values at the date of transfer.
The company generally estimates fair values based on the
present value of furure expected cash flows using management’s
key assumptions as discussed below. The company retains the
rights to certain future cash flows and in the U.S. transactions
receives annual servicing fees approximating one percent of the
outstanding balance. No significant balances for servicing assets
or liabilities exist because the benefits received for servicing are
Jjust adequate to compensate the servicer for the costs of
providing the servicing. The company’s maximum exposure
under recourse provisions refated to securitized sold retai]
notes at October 31, 2006 and 2005 was $109 million and
$151 million, respectively. The recourse provisions contractually
specifted by the documents governing the securitization
transaction are contingent habilities that are remote at this time.
Except for this exposure, the investors and securitization trusts
have no recourse to the company for failure of debtors to pay
when due. The company’s retained interests are subordinate to
mvestors’ interests and their values are subject to certain key
assumptions as shown below. The total assets of the unconsoli-
dated SPEs related ro these securitizations at October 31, 2006
and 2005 were $994 million and $1,923 million, respectively.
At October 31, 2006, the maximum remaining term of these
receivables sold was approximately four vears.

Pretax gains in millions of dollars on securitized retail
notes sold (none in 2006 and 2005) and key assumptions used
to initially determine the fair value of the retained interests
were as follows:

2004
PIEtaX GAINS ... e e $ 48
Weighted-average maturities in months...........cooevemmer e, 20
Average annual prepayment 7ates...... e, 20%
Average expected annual credit losses 38%
Discount rates on retained interests
and subordinate ranChes ..., 13%




Cash flows received from securitization trusts for retail
notes sold in millions of dollars were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Proceeds from new securitizations ............. $ 2269
Servicing fees received...... $ 13 % 22 30
Other cash flows received 27 46 66

Components of retained interests in securitized retail notes
sold at Qctober 31 in millions of dollars follow:

2006 2005
INErEst ONNY SLHDS 1.vvvv e $ 41 % b1
Reserve accounts held for benefit of
securitization entities ..o 48 69
Subordinated Certificates ... 9 7
Retained interests.......................... S PTTRU $ 98 § 127

The total retained interests, weighted-average life, weighted-
average current key economic assumptions and the sensitivity
amalysis showing the hypothetical effects on the retained interests
from immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in
those assutptions with doflars in millions were as follows:

2006 2005
Securitized retail notes sold
Carrying amount/fair value of retained interests............. $ 98 § 127
Weighted-average life {in months} ..o 1 14
Prepayment speed assumption (annual rate).... . 16% 19%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change.............. 8 2 % 7
(mpact on fair value of 20% adverse change ............. $ 3 8§ 13
Expected credit losses {annual rate} ... 46% 48%
impact on fair vatue of 10% adverse change.............. $ 4 & 9
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change ............ $ 7 § 18
Residuat cash flows discount rate @nnual)........c.o..... 1% 10%
Impact an fair value of 10% adverse change.............. $ 19 & 26
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change ............. $ 38 % 50

These sensitivities are hypothetical changes in fair value
and cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the
changes in assumption to the changes in fair value may not be
linear. Also, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption
is calculated without changing any other assumption, whereas
changes in one factor may result in changes in another.
Accordingly, no assurance can be given that actual results would
be consistent with the results of these estimates.

Principal balances of owned, securitized retail notes
sold and total managed retail notes; past due amounts; and
credit losses (net of recoveries) as of and for the years ended
Qctober 31, in millions of dotlars follow:

Principal Principal 60 Days or  Net Credit
Outstanding More Past Due Losses
2006
OWNE ..o $ 11,888 519 $10
Securitized retail notes sold ... 898 6 2
Managed........in $ 12,786 $ 25 $12
2005
OWNE ..o $ 10.223 $ 15 $ 4
Securitized retail notes sold ... 1,777 7 3
Managed........ccomcccnrennns $ 12,000 $ 22 $ 7

The amount of actual and projected future credit losses as
a percent of the original balance of securitized retail notes sold
(expected static pool losses) were as follows:

Seguritized Retail Notes Sold In
2004

Actual and Projected Losses (%} as of October 31:

13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables for continuing operations at October 31
consisted of the following in millions of dollars:

2006 2005
$ 224 % 316
89 120
135 87
$ 448 § 523

The credit operations’ receivables related to securitizations
are equal to the present value of payments to be received for
certain retained interests and deposits made with other entities
for recourse provisions under the retail note sales agreements.

14. EQUIPMENT ON OPERATING LEASES

Operating leases arise primarily from the leasing of John Deere
equipment to retail customers. Initial lease terms generally range
from 36 to 60 months. Net equipment on operating leases
totaled $1,494 nillion and $1,336 million at October 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The equipment is depreciated on a
straight-line basis ovet the terms of the leases. The accumulated
depreciation on this equipment was $460 million and $436
nullion at Qctober 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
The corresponding depreciation expense was $269 million in
2006, $237 million in 2005 and $239 million n 2004.

Future payments to be received on operating leases totaled
%708 millien at QOctober 31, 2006 and are scheduled as follows
in millions of dollars: 2007 — 8300, 2008 — $204, 2009 — $125,
2010 - $61 and 2011 - $18.

15. INVENTORIES

Most inventories owned by Deere & Company and its

United States equipment subsidiaries are valued at cost, on the
“last-in, first-out” {LIFO) basis. Remaining inventories are
generally valued at the lower of cost, on the “first-in, first-out™
(FIFQ) basis, or market. The value of gross inventories on the
LIFO basis represented 60 percent and 61 percent of worldwide
gross inventories at FIFO value on October 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. [ all inventories had been valued on a FIFO basts,




estimated Itventories by major classification at October 31 in
miilions of dollars would have been as follows:

and 2005 were $322 million and $302 million, less accumulated
amortization of $258 million and $237 million, respectively.
Amortization of these software costs was $32 million in 2006,
$35 million 1n 2005 and $32 nullion in 2004.

The cost of compliance with foreseeable environmental
requirements has been accrued and did not have a matenal effect
on the company’s financial position or resules of operations.

17. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS-NET

2006 2005
Raw materials and SUDPIES .....coooveireirnnceiieecen, $ 112 § 716
WOrK-iN-process........ccevevevvvrececenns 372 425
Finished machines and parts 2,013 2126
Total FIFQ VaIUB. ......c..oooovieier e 3,097 3,267
Less adjustment to LIFO valu........ooovvvviecricoe, 1,140 1132
INVENROFIES. ... $1,957 §$2135

16. PROPERTY AND DEPREGIATION

A summary of property and equipment for continuing operations
at October 31 in millions of dollars follows:

Useiul Lives®

{Years) 2006 2005
Equipment Operations
LANK ..o cecerininir v $ 83 § 79
Buildings and building equipment ........ 25 1,692 1,430
Machinery and equipment................... 10, 3,088 2961
Dies, patterns, tools, etc ... 7 931 1,039
Allother ..., 5 531 589
Construction in progress.......c.cc.e...... 231 232
Total at Cost oeviieie 6,516 6,390
Less accumulated depreciation ........... 4,102 4113
TOtAl e 2414 2,277
Financial Services
Land ..o 4 1
Buildings and building equipment ........ 29 39 12
Machinery and equipment 10 65 7
Al other ... 6 36 37
Construction in progress............c....... 245 43
Total @t CoSt ..o 389 100
Less accumulated depreciation ........... 39 34
Total oo 350 66
Property and equipment-net.......... 2,764 $2,343

" Weighted-averages

Leased property under capital leases amounting to
$15 matlion and $23 million at October 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, is included in property and equipment.

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Total property and equipment additions in 2006,
2005 and 2004 for continuing operations were $781 million,
$523 million and $351 million and depreciation was $379
million, $354 million and $339 million, respectively.

Financial Services property and equipment additions included
above were $292 million, $46 million and $4 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004 and depreciation was $8 million, $3 million
and $3 million, respectively. The increase in Financial Services
additions in 2006 and 2005 was primarily due to wind turbines
related to the wind energy entities.

Capitalized software is stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and the estimated useful life is three years.

The amounts of total capitalized software costs, including
purchased and internally developed software, classified as
“Other Assets” for continuing operations at October 31, 2006

37

The amounts of goodwill by operating segment were as foliows
in millions of dollars:

2006 2005
Agricultural eqUIDMENT ... $ 180 § 15
Commercial and consumer equipment.............oooveenn.. 357 384
Construction and forestry 573 554
GOOBWIIN........coore e $1110  $1,089

In 2006, the goodwill in the agricultural equipment
segment increased by $34 million due to the acquisition of
Roberts Irrigation Products, Inc. The goodwill in this segment
also decreased by approximately $12 million in 2006 due to an
adjustment of the goodwill related to the 2005 acquisition of
an additional 48 percent interest in John Deere Equipment
Private Ltd. The adjustment was the result of the recognition
of an intangible asset for customer lists and relationships of §14
million, net of deferred tax effects and other minor adjustments
of assets and liabilities related to the acquisition. The goodwill
in the commercial and consumer equipment segment decreased
by approximately $28 million in 2006 due to an adjustment of
the goodwill related to the 2005 acquisition of United Green
Mark, Inc. This was the result of the recognition of an intan-
gible asset for customer lists and relationships of $38 million, net
of deferred tax effects, The goodwill adjustments were the result
of final fair value evaluations of identifiable net assets related to
acquisitions. The remaining changes in goodwill were primarily
due to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

The components of other intangible assets are as follows in
millions of dollars:

Useful Lives*

(Years} 2006 2005
Amortized intangible assets:
Customer lists and rglationships............... 16 § /2
Gross patents, licenses and other............. 6 11§ 9
Total a1 Cost ..o 63 9
Less accumulated amortization ............ i6 6
TotA) o, 47 3
Unamortized intangible assets:
Intangible asset refated to minimum
pension liability ... 9 13
Other intangible assets-net ............... $ 56 § 18

* Weighted-averages

Other intangible assets, excluding the intangible pension
asset, are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. The
intangible pension asset is remeasured and adjusted annually.
The amortization of other intangible assets in 2006, 2005 and
2004 were $11 million, $2 million and $2 million, respectively.




18. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2006 2005
Equipment Operations
COMMEICIA PAPEN «..oocvervevcveeves s § 324
Notes payable to banks 80
Long-term borrowings due within ong year ................ 7 274
TORAL ot o 282 678
Financial Services
COMMENGIA PAPBT ....vovevireiiiir e e 2,352 1,902
Notes payable to banks........oocoviiin o 13 11
Notes payable refated to securitizations (see below)....... 2,403 1,474
Long-term batrowings due within one year ... 3,07 2819
TOL oot 7839 6,206
Short-term DOTOWINGS.............ccoov e $8121 $6884

—

The notes payable related to securitizations for Financial
Services are secured by restricted financing receivables (retail
notes) on the balance sheet (see Note 12). Although these notes
payable are classified as short-term since payment is required if
the retail notes are liquidated early, the payment schedule for
these borrowings of $2,403 million at October 31, 2006 based
on the expected liquidation of the retail notes in millions of
dollars is as follows: 2007 - 3897, 2008 - 8675, 2009 - $482,
2010 - §286, 2011 - $63.

The weighted-average interest rates on total short-term
borrowings, excluding current maturities of long-term botrowings,
at Qctober 31, 2006 and 2005 were 5.1 percent and 3.9 percent,
respectively. All of the Financial Services’ short-term borrowings
represent obligations of the credit subsidianes.

Lines of credit available from U.S. and foreign banks were
$3,063 million at October 31, 2006. Some of these credic lines
are available to both Deere & Company and John Deere
Capital Corporation (Capital Corporation). At October 31,
2006, 3410 million of these worldwide lines of credit were
unused. For the purpose of computing the unused credit lines,
commercial paper and short-term bank borrowings, excluding
secured borrowings and the current portion of long-term
borrowings, were considered to constitute utilization.

Included in the above lines of credit was a long-term credit
facility agreement for $3 billion, expiring in February 2011,
The agreement is mutually extendable and the annual facility
fee is not significant. The credit agreement requires the
Capital Corporation to maintain its consolidated ratio of eamings
to fixed charges at not less than 1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter
and the ratio of senior debt, excluding securitization indebted-
ness, to capital base (total subordinated debt and stockholder’s
equity excluding accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss)) at not more than 8.5 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter.
The credit agreement also requires the Equipment Operations
to maintain a ratio of total debt to total capital {total debt and
stockholders” equity excluding accumulated other comprehen-
sive income (Joss)) of 65 percent or less at the end of each fiscal
quarter according to accounting principles generally accepted in
the U.S. in effect at October 31, 2005. Under this.provision, the
comipany’s excess equity capacity and retained earnings balance
free of restriction at October 31, 2006 was $6,204 million.

Alternatively under this provision, the Equipment Operations
had the capacity to incur additional debt of $11,522 million at
October 31, 2006. All of these requirements of the credit
agreement have been met during the periods included in the
financial statements.

Deere & Company has an agreement with the Capital
Corporation pursuant to which it has agreed to continue to own
at least 51 percent of the voting shares of capital stock of the
Capital Corporation and to maintain the Capital Corporation’s
consolidated tangible net worth at not less than $50 million.
This agreement also obligates Deere & Company to make income
maintenance payments to the Capital Corporation such that its
consolidated ratio of eamings to fixed charges 1s not less than
1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter. Deere & Company’s obligations
to make payments to the Capital Corporation under the
agreement are independent of whether the Capital Corporation
is in default on its indebtedness, obligations or other habilities.
Further, Deere & Company's obligations under the agreement
are not measured by the amount of the Capital Corporation’s
indebtedness, obligations or other liabilities. Deere & Company’s
obligations to make payments under this agreement are
expressly stated not to be a guaranty of any specific indebtedness,
obligation or liability of the Capital Corporation and are
enforceable only by or in the name of the Capital Corporation.
No payments were required under this agreement during the
periods included in the financial statements.

19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at October 31 for
continuing operations consisted of the following in millions
of dollars:

2006 2005
Equipment Operations '
Accounts payable:
Trade payableS ..o v s $1,246 § 1,213
Dividends payahle ........coovvverininee s 89 74
0]1)7<] GO T T UOU DU PP PE PR 62 61
Accrued expenses:
Employee benefits 981 914
Product warranties 507 535
Dealer sales program iSCOUNS ......c.ooooevvicmniniiiinnnn 378 312
Dealer sales YOWME diSCOUNtS oo 220 254
OHNET et 632 682
TOMAL s 4115 4,045
Financial Services
Accounts payable:
Deposits withheld from dealers and merchants.......... 194 184
11T OO UROPRSTOPOPTRRIRS 178 137
Accrued expenses:
Unearned revenue 204 79
‘nterest payable....... 129 1B
Employee benefits 69 61
L0111 (U U UU SO PSR UTTUTSROY 29 78
TOMAL .ottt s 803 655
ElIMiNAtioNS™ ....cvoeiveeeeieece e s sre s 435 379
Accounts payable and accrued expenses............... $4,483 $431

* Primarily trade receivable valuation accounts which are reclassified as accrued
expenses by the Equipment Operations as a result of their trade receivables being
sold to Financial Services.




20. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

21, LEASES

Long-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2005

Equipment Operations**
Notes and debentures.
7.85% debentures due 2010 .......cceveevevrveenenen $ 306 $ 500
6.95% notes due 2014: {$700 principal)
Swapped to variable interest rates
0f 6.4% - 2006, 5.2% — 2005 ... 734* 744
8.95% debentures due 2019, 56 200

8-1/2% debentures due 2022 ..... i05 200
6.55% debentures due 2028....... 200 200
8.10% debentures due 2030 ..o, 250 250
7125% notes due 2031 ..o 300 300
OB NOLES ... e 18 29
TOWL it 1,968 2,423
Financial Services**
Notes and debentures:
Medium-term notgs due 2006 - 2011:
(principal $5,820 - 2006, $5,505 - 2005)
Average interest rates of 4.8% — 2008,
41% = 2005 i 5,805* 5,047*

4.5% notes due 2007: {$500 principal)

Swapped $300 to variable interest rate

0f 4.5% — 20050 oo 498*
3.90% notes due 2008: ($850 principal)

Swappad $350 to variable interest rates

of 5.9% — 2006, 4.7% ~ 2005 ..........ccoeooeone. 839" 835°
6% notes due 2009: ($300 principal)

Swapped 1o variable interest rates

of 5.6% — 2006, 4.0% — 2005........ccccovnvivennn. 304 308°
7% notes due 2012: ($1,500 principal)

Swapped $1,225 to variable interest rates

0f 6.4% — 2006, 4.8% — 2005 ........cccco. oo, 1,570* 1,592*
5.10% debentures due 2013: {$650 principal)
Swapped to variable interest rates
0 6.1% ~ 2006, 4.8% —2005..........cccovvvrenn.. 626° 627~
OthEr NOES ..o e 471 409
TOMAL e 9,615 9,316
Long-term borrowings.........................ccooovinnnnn. $11,584 $11,739

* Includes fair value adjustments related te interest rate swaps.
“* Adlinterest rates are as of year end.

All of the Financial Services” long-term borrowings
represent obligations of the credit subsidiaries,

The approximate principal amounts of the Equipment
Operations’ long-term borrowings maturing in each of the
next five years in millions of dollars are as follows: 2007 — $7,
2008 — $3, 2009 — 8§11, 2010 - $312 and 2011. - none.
The approximate principal amounts of the credit subsidiaries’
long-term borrowings maturing in each of the next five years in
millions of dollars are as follows: 2007 — 83,072, 2008 — $3,393,
2009 - $2.206, 2010 - $1,038 and 2011 - §798.

At October 31, 2006, future minimum lease payments under
capital leases amounted to $13 million as follows: 2007 — 82,
2008 — §1, 2009 — 81, 2010 - 81, 2011 - $1 and later years $7.
Total rental expense for operating leases was $118 million in
2006, $111 million in 2005 and $102 million it 2004,

At October 31, 2006, future minimum lease payments under
operating leases amounted to $301 million as follows:

2007 - $80, 2008 — §64, 2009 — $49, 2010 — $30, 2011 — §23
and later years $55.

22, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The company generally determines its total warranty liability
by applying historical claims rate experience to the estimated
amount of equipment that has been sold and is still under
warranty based ot dealer inventoties and retail sales.
The historical claims rate is primarily determined by a review
of five-year claims costs and current quality developments.

A reconciliation of the changes in the warranty Liability
in millions of dollars follows:

Warranty Liability

2006 2005
Beginning of year balance.............c..ocooovovvoveeoeee $ 535 § 458
Payments.......c.coveeeerrrernnns {509) (453}
Accruals for warranties........o.oeevvivvens 481 530
ENd Of Year DAIANCE .....oovevviverereecce s $ 507 $ 535

The company has certain recourse obligations on
financing receivables that it has previously sold. If the receiv-
ables sold are not collected, the company would be required to
cover those losses up to the amount of its recourse obligation.
At October 31, 2006, the maximum amount of exposure to
losses under these agreements was $117 million, The estimated
credit nisk associated with sold receivables totaled $4 million
at October 31, 2006. This risk of loss is recognized primarily in
the retained interests recorded on the company’s balance sheet
(see Note 12}. The company may recover a portion of any
required payments incurred under these agreements from the
repossession of the equipment collateralizing the receivables.

At Ocrober 31, 2006, the maximum remaining term of the
receivables guaranteed was approximately four years,

At October 31, 2006, the company had approximately
$140 million of guarantees issued primarily to banks outside the
U.S. and Canada related to third-party receivables for the retail
financing of John Deere equipment. The company may recover
a portion of any required payments incurred under these
agreements from repossession of the equipment collateralizing
the receivables. At October 31, 2006, the company had accrued
losses of approximately $3 million under these agreements.

The maximum remaining tern of the receivables guaranteed
at October 31, 2006 was approximately eight years.

The credic operations” subsidiary, John Deere Risk
Protection, Inc., offers crop insurance products through a
managing general agency agreement (Agreement) with an
insurance company (Insurance Carrier) rated “Excellent” by
A.M. Best Company. As a managing general agent, John Deere




Risk Protection, Inc. will receive commissions from the
Insurance Carrier for selling crop insurance to producers,

The credit operations have guaranteed certain obligations under
the Agreement, including the obligation to pay the Insurance
Carrier for any uncollected premiums. At October 31, 2006,
the maximum exposure for uncollected premiums was approxi-
mately $34 nullion. Substantially all of the credit operations’
crop insurance risk under the Agreement has been mitigated by
a syndicate of private reinsurance companies. The reinsurance
companies are rated “Excellent” or higher by A.M. Best
Company. In the event of a widespread catastrophic crop failure
throughout the U.S. and the default of these highly rated
reinsurance companies on their reinsurance obligations, the
credit operations would be required to reimburse the [nsurance
Carrier for exposure under the Agreement of approximately
$432 million at October 31, 2006. The credit operations
believe that the likelihood of the occurrence of substantially

all of the events that give rise to the exposure under this
Agreement is extremely remote and as a result, at October 31,
2006, the credit operations have accrued probable losses of
approximately $.2 million under the Agreement.

At Qctober 31, 2006, the company had commitments of
approximately $481 million for the construction and acquisition
of property and equipment. At October 31, 2006, the company
also had pledged or restricted assets of $92 million, outside the
U.S., primarily as collateral for borrowings, and $15 million of
restricted other assets in the U.S. related to the sale of the health
care operations.

The company also had other miscellaneous contingent
liabilities totaling approximately $35 mullion at October 31, 2006,
for which it believes the probability for payment is remote.

The company is subject to various unresolved legal actions
which arise in the normal course of its business, the most
prevalent of which relate to product liability (including asbestos
related liability), retail credit, software licensing, patent and
trademark matters. Although it is not possible to predict with
certainty the outcome of these unresolved legal actions or the
range of possible loss, the company believes these unresolved legal
actions will not have a material effect on its financial statements.

23. CAPITAL STOCK

Chanyes in the common stock account in millions were as follows:

Number of

Shares Issued  Amount
Balance at October 31, 2003 268.2 $ 1,988
OERBE ot 56
Balance at Gctober 31, 2004, 268.2 2,044
OB e et a ettt eannnas a8
Balance at October 31, 2005, 268.2 2,082
OB s 130
Balance at October 31,2006 ....................... 268.2 § 2,212

The number of common shares the company is authorized
to issue is 600 million and the number of authorized preferred
shares, none of which has been issued, is 9 million.
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A reconciliation of basic and diluted income per share
follows in millions, except per share amounts:

2006 2005 2004

Continuing Operations:
INCOME. ... $1453.2 $14140 $1,398.4
Average shares outstanding 233.4 243.3 2472
Basic income per share...................... $ 623 § 581 § 566
Average shares outstanding ..................... 2334 243.3 2472
Effect of dilutive stock options.................. 2.4 31 59

Total potential shares outstanding........ 235.8 246.4 2531
Diluted income per share .................... $ 616 $ 574 % 553
Total Operations:
NELINCOME. oo erenseens $1.693.8 $1446.8 $1,406.1
Average shares cuistanding 233.4 243.3 2472
Basic net income per share............... $ 726 ¢ 59 § 569

Total potential shares outstanding........ 2358 246.4 2531
Diluted net income per share............. $ 718 § 587 § 556

All stock options outstanding were included in the
computation during 2006, 2005 and 2004, except 9 thousand
stock options in 2006 that had an antidilutive effect under the
treasury stock method.

24. STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

In the first quarter of 2006, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment,

(see Note 1 for “New Accounting Standards Adopted” and
“Share-Based Compensation™ for 2005 and 2004 information).

The company issues stock options and restricted stock
awards to key employees under plans approved by stockholders.
Restricted stock is also issued to nonemployee directors for
their services as directors under a plan approved by stockholders.
Options are awarded with the exercise price equal to the market
price and become exercisable in one to three years after grant.
Options expire ten years after the date of grant. Restricted stock
awards generally vest after three years. The company recognizes
the compensation cost on these stock options and restricted
stock awards either immediately if the employee is eligible to
retire or on a straight-line basis over the vesting period for the
entire award. According to these plans at October 31, 2006,
the company is authorized to grant an additional 11.2 million
shares related to stock options or restricted stock.

Tn 2006, the fair value of each option award was estimated
on the date of grant using a binomial lattice option valuation
model. Expected volatilities are based on implied volatitities
from traded call options on the company’s stock. The expected
volatilities are constructed from the following three components:
the starting implied volatlity of short-term call options traded
within a few days of the valuation date; the predicted implied
volatility of long-term call options; and the trend in implied
volatilities over the span of the call options’ time to maturiry.
The company uses historical data to estimate option exercise
behavior and employee termination within the valuation model.




The expected term of options granted is derived from the
output of the option valuation model and represents the period
of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding.
The nisk-free rates utilized for periods throughout the
contractual life of the options are based on U.S. Treasury security
yields at the time of grant.

The assumptions used for the binomial lattice model to
determine the fair value of options granted during 2006 follow:

Risk-free iNtergst rale ....c..c.oovvvcveverienieiress e, 3.8% - 4.5%
Expected dividends 1.8%
Expected volatility..........ooooevivieeee, 25.3% - 27.5%
Weighted-average volatility 25.4%
Expected term {in YEArs) ..o 69-77

Stock option activity at October 31, 2006 and changes
during 2006 in millions of dollars and shares except for share
price follow:

Remaining
Contractual  Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Shares Price*  (Years) Value
Qutstanding at beginning of
YEAM oo, 18.2 $ 51.82
Granted........ocoovveiii 24 68.88
EXBrcised ..o, (7.3} 46,19
Expired or forfeited.................. (.1} 65.76
Qutstanding at end of year...... 13.2 57.95 668 § 384
Exercisable at end of vear ....... 78 51.00 575 280

“Weighted-averages

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options
granted during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $20.20, $19.97
and §12.40, respectively. The total intrinsic values of options
exercised during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $236 million,
$102 million and $149 nmullion, respectively. During 2006,
2005 and 2004, cash received from stock option exercises was
£328 mullion, $154 million and $251 million with tax benefits
of $87 million, $38 million and §55 million, respectively.

The company’s nonvested restricted shares at October 31,
2006 and changes during 2006 in millions of dollars and

shares follow:

Grant-Date
Shares  Fair Value*
Naonvested at beginning of

YBAN 1ooeevrcertents ettt enea e 7 3 60.72
Granted.......coov e 2 69.77
VBSTE ..o (.2) 47.94
FOABIEU ... e, 65.56
Nonvested al end of year ..o, v 7 $ 66.90

*Weighted-averages

During 2006, the total share-based compensation expense
was §91 million with an income tax benefit recognized in
net income of $34 mullion. At October 31, 2006, there was
$54 million of total unrecognized compensation cost from
share-based compensation arrangements granted under the
plans, which is related to nonvested shares. This compensation
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is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period

of approximately 1.5 years. The total fair values of stock options
and restricted shares vested during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were
$63 million, $55 million and $34 million, respectively.

Prior to adoption of the new standard, the pro-forma
disclosure used a straight-line amortization of the stock option
and restricted stock expense over the vesting period according
to the prior standard, FASE Statenient No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, which included employees eligible
to retire. Under the new standard, the awards granted after the
adoption must be recognized in expense over the requisite
service peniod, which is either immediate if the employee is
eligible to retire, or over the vesting period if the employee
is not eligible to retire. The amount of expense for awards
granted prior to adoption of the new standard for employees
eligible to retire that continued to be amortized over the
nominal vesting period in 2006 was approximately $19 million
pretax, $12 million after-tax (3.03 per share, basic and diluted).

The company currently uses shares which have been
repurchased through its stock repurchase programs to satisfy
share option exercises. At October 31, 2006, the company
had 41.0 million shares in treasury stock and 10.3 million
shares remaining to be repurchased under its current publicly
announced 26.0 million share repurchase program.

25. EMPLOYEE INVESTMENT AND SAVINGS PLANS

The company has defined contribution plans related to employee
investment and savings plans primarily in the U.S. Company
contributions and costs under these plans were $100 million in

2000, $81 milhion in 2005 and $43 million in 2004.
26. 0OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ITEMS

Other comprehensive income items under FASB Statement
No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, are transactions
recorded in stockholders’ equity during the year, excluding
net income and transactions with stockholders. Following are
the items included in other comprehensive income (loss) and
the related tax eftects in millions of dollars:

Before Tax After
Tax {Expense) Tax
Amount  Credit Amount
2004
Minimum pension liability adjustment ......... $1,627T § (606) $ 1,021
Cumulative translation adjustment.............. 86 2 88
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives:
HEdging 1085 ..o (19} 7 (12)
Reclassification of realized
10SS 10 NEt INCOME ..., 44 (16) 28
Net unrealized gain..........ccooveevrviiiinne 25 (9) 16
Unrealized gain on investments:
HOIING GaIN ..o 3 (1} 2
Reclassification of realized gain to
NELINCOME.....coivvriirirrre e {3 1 {2)

Net unrealized gain.................ccovvvvnene

Total gther comprehensive income

{continued)




Before Tax After
Tax (Expense) Tax

Amount  Credit Amount

2005
Minimum pension liability adjustment ......... $ 86) 3 34 § (52
Cumulative translation adjustment.............. 60 1 61
Unrealized gain {loss) on derivatives: .

Hedging Gain........coeceeerieireerererecen 6 ) 4

Reclassification of realized

1058 10 NELINCOME ... 14 (5} 9

Net unrealized gain.............ccevcvvrvirnnrenes 20 (7 13
Unrealized holding loss and net loss

ON INVESIMENTS™ .vvicee e (9} 3 (6)

Total other comprehensive incoma (loss) ... $ (150 $ 31 §& 16

* Reclassification of reatized gains or losses o net income were nat material.

2006
Minimum pension liability adjustment ........ $ 34 § (13) $ 21
Cumulative translation adjustment............... 73 7 80
Unrealized hedging gain and net gain

0N darivatives™ ..o e 1 1
Unrealizad loss on investments:

HOIING J0SS oo {5 2 {3)

Reclassification of realize

1085 10 NBLINCOME......ovviiiiiiiininens 4 (2) 2
Net unrealized 1085 ...o.vvvcovvenii s ( (1)

Total cther comprehensive income (loss).... & 106§ (5 § 101

* Reclassification of realized gains or l0sses to net income were not material,

27. FINANCIAL {INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial instruments which do not approximate
the carrying values in the financial statements at October 31 in
millions of dollars follow:

2006 2005
Carrying  Fair  Carrying  Fair
Value Value Value  Value

Financing receivablgs ..................... $14,004 $13,799 $12,869 $12,696
Restricted financing receivables....... $ 2371 $ 2348 § 1,458 § 1438
Short-term secured borrowings” ... $ 2403 $ 2402 $ 1474 $ 1468

Long-term borrowings:
Equipment Qperations $ 1969 § 2197 $ 2423 § 2,774
Financial Services .........veveevenee. 9615 9678 9316 9,374

Total .o $11,584 $11,875 $11,739 $12,148
* See Note 18.

Fair Value Estimates

Fair values of the long-term financing receivables with
fixed rates were based on the discounted values of their
related cash flows at current market interest rates. The fair
values of the remaining financing receivables approximated
the carrying amounts.
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Fair values of long-term borrowings and short-term secured
borrowings with fixed rates were based on the discounted values
of their related cash flows at current market interest rates.
Certain long-term borrowings have been swapped to current
variable interest rates. The carrying values of these long-term
borrowings include adjustments related to fair value hedges.

Derivatives

All derivative instruments are recorded at fair values and
classified as either other assets or accounts payable and accrued
expenses on the balance sheet (see Note 1).

Interest Rate Swaps
The company enters into interest rate swap agreements primarily to
more closely match the fixed or floating interest rates of the credit
operations’ borrowings to those of the assets being funded.
Certain interest rate swaps were designated as hedges
of future cash flows from commercial paper and variable interest
rate borrowings. The effective portion of the fair value gains
or losses on these cash flow hedges are recorded in other
comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into
interest expense as payments are accrued and the swaps
approach maturity. These amounts offset the effects of interest
rate changes on the related borrowings. The amount of the gain
recorded in other comprehensive income at October 31, 2006
that is expected to be reclassified to interest expense in the next
12 months if interest rates remain unchanged is approximately
$7 million after-tax. These swaps mature in up to 53 months.
Certain interest rate swaps were designated as fair value
hedges of fixed-rate, long-term borrowings. The effective
portion of the fair value gains or losses on these swaps were
offset by fair value adjustments in the underlying borrowings.
Any ineffective portions of the gains or losses on all cash
flow and fair value interest rate swaps designated as hedges were
recognized currently in interest expense and were not material.
There were no gains or Josses reclassified from unrealized in
other comprehensive income to realized in earnings as a result
of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges. There were no
components of cash flow or fair value hedges that were
excluded from the assessment of effectiveness.
The company has certain interest rate swap agreements
that are not designated as hedges under FASB Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
and the fair value gains or losses are recognized currently in
eamings. These instruments relate to swaps that are used to
facilitate certain borrowings.

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts, Swaps and Options

The company has entered into foreign exchange forward
contracts, swaps and options in order to manage the currency
exposure of certain receivables, liabilities, borrowings and
expected inventory purchases. For transactions not designated as
hedges under FASB Statement No. 133, the fair value gains or
tosses from these foreign currency derivatives are recognized
currently in ‘cost of sales or other operating expenses, generally
offsetting the foreign exchange gains or losses on the exposures
being managed.




The company has designated certain foreign exchange
forward contracts as cash flow hedges of expected inventory
purchases. The effective portion of the fair value gains or losses
on these cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive
income and subsequently reclassified into cost of sales as the
inventory costs are recognized in cost of sales, These amounts
offset the effect of the changes in foreign exchange rates on the
related inventory purchases. The amount of the loss recorded in
other comprehensive income that is expected to be reclassified to
cost of sales in the next 12 months is approximately $2 million
after-tax. These contracts mature in up to 12 months.

The company has designated foreign exchange currency
swaps as cash flow hedges of long-term borrowings. The
effective portion of the fair value gains or losses on these swaps
is recorded in other comprehensive income and subsequently
reclassified into other operating expenses as payments are
accrued and these instruments approach maturity. This offsets
the exchange rate effects on the borrowing being hedged
included in other operating expenses.

Any ineffective portions of the gains or losses on all cash
flow and fair value foreign exchange contracts and swaps
designated as hedges were recognized currently in earnings and
were not material. There were no gains or losses reclassified
from unrealized in other comprehensive income to realized in
earnings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges.
There were no components of cash flow or fair value hedges
that were excluded from the assessment of effectiveness,

28. SEGMENT AND GEDGRAPHIC AREA DATA FOR THE YEARS
ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

The company’s operations are organized and reported in four
major business segments described as follows:

The agricultural equipment segment manufactures and
distributes a full line of farm equipment and related service parts
~ inchuding rractors: combine, cotton and sugarcane harvesters;
tillage, seeding and soil preparation machinery; sprayers;
hay and forage equipment; integrated agricultural management
systems technology; and precision agricultural irrigation
equipment.

The commercial and consumer equipment segment
manufactures and distributes equipment, products and service
parts for commercial and residential uses — including tractors
for lawn, garden, commercial and utility purposes; mowing
equipment, including walk-behind mowers; golf course
equipment; utility vehicles; landscape products and irrigation
equipment; and other outdoor power products.

The construction and forestry segment manufactures,
distributes to dealers and sells at retail a broad range of machines
and service parts used in construction, earthmoving, material
handling and timber harvesting — including backhoe loaders;
crawler dozers and loaders; four-wheel-drive loaders;
excavators; motor graders; articulated dump trucks; landscape
loaders; skid-steer loaders; and log skidders, feller bunchers, log
loaders, log forwarders, log harvesters and related attachmens.
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The products and services produced by the equipment
segments are marketed primarily through independent retail
dealer networks and major retail outlets.

The credit segment pimarily finances sales and leases by
John Deere dealers of new and used agricultural, commercial
and consumer, and construction and forestry equipment.

In addition, it provides wholesale financing to dealers of the
foregoing equipment, provides operating loans, finances retail
revolving charge accounts, offers certain crop risk mitigation
products and invests in wind energy generation.

The company's tractors and implements segment and
the harvesting equipment segment have been aggregated in the
agricultural equipment segment described above since they have
similar economic characteristics as well as similar products and
services, production processes, types of customers and methods
used for distribution of their products.

Certain operations do not meet the materiality threshold
of FASB Statement No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information, and have'been grouped
together as “Other.” Due to the sale of the health care
operations in 2006 (see Note 2), the health care operations
were reclassified from “Other” to discontinued operations for
all years presented. Applicable segment information as follows
has been revised for this reclassification. The remaining
“Other” information consists of certain miscellaneous service
operations that do not meet the materiality threshold.

Because of integrated imanufacturing operations and
common administrative and marketing support, a substantial
number of allocations must be made to determine operating
segment and geographic area data. [ntersegment sales and
revenues represent sales of components and finance charges
which are generally based on market prices.




Information relating to operations by operating segment
in millions of dollars follows. In addition to the following
unaffiliated sales and revenues by segment, intersegment sales
and revenues in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:
agricultural equipment net sales of $138 million, $105 million
and $88 million, construction and forestry net sales of
$10 million, $13 million and $11 million, and credit revenues
of $216 million, $237 million and $216 million, respectively.

. OPERATING SEGMENTS 2006 2005 2004

Net sales and revenues
Unaffiliated customers:

Agricultural equipment net sales ............ $10,232 $10,567 $ 9,717
Commercial and consumer equipment
MEESAIBS ... 3,877 38605 3,742
Construction and farestry
NEESAIBS .o 5775 5229 4,214
Tatal net 8alesS.....oovvvvveeir e 19,884 19,401 17673
Credit ravaNUES ..o s 1,818 1450 1,276
Other FBVENUBS™ ..o 445 340 255
TOMAL v $22148 $21,197 $19,204

* Other revenues are primarily the Equipment Operations' revenwes for finance
and interest income, and other income as disclosed in Note 30, net of certain
intercompany eliminations.

Operating profit
Agricultural equIDMeNt.........ccooevcvvivrans $ 882 & 970 $1,072
Commergial and consumer equiprent....... 221 183 246
Construction and forestry.......c.covevvvvnnnns 802 689 587
520 491 466
1

Total operating profit ......ooevirirecvevnnns 2426 2333 23N
INEETESt INCOME. .....ov e 75 103 64
Investment income .......... 83 25
Interest EXpENSE ....ccccovvemrmrnrnniieeens (193) (211 (205)
‘Foreign exchange gain (foss) from equipment

operations’ financing activities ............. 12 {7} (10
Corporate expenses —nNet.........ooevvvennne (208) 130y (M9
INCOME AXES. ..o (r42)  (699) (703} .

TOHEL v s 973y (919 (973)
Income from continuing operations............. 1,453 1414 1,398
Income from discontinued operations ......... 241 33 8
Netincome...........ooovivniniieens $ 1,694 %1447 $1406

* Qperating profit of the credit business segment includes the effect of its interest
expense and foreign exchange gains or losses.

Interest income*
Agricultural quIpmMEnt..............cccocermmmmrnerns $ 73 6 3 6
Commercizl and consumer equipment. 6 5 5
Construction and forestry............ 4 4 8
Credit™ ..o 1570 1,241 992
COrPOTALE ..o 75 103 64
INEEICOMPANY™™ ...vvvcccceiere e (295) (281)  (241)
Tl v $ 1367 $1078 § 834

= Daoes not include finance rental income for equipment on gperating leases.

** Includes interest income from Equipment Operations for financing trade receivables.

OPERATING SEGMENTS 2006 2005 2004
interest expense

Agricultural equipment® ... $ 142 % 138 § 127
Commercial and consumer equipment” ..., 57 52 54
Construction and forestry” 44 34 24
Credit.. .o 876 607 423
COMPOTALE. ..o cvv e e 193 21 205

INEICOMPANY™ ..o (295) (281) (241)
TOMAD o $ 1017 § 761 § 592

* Includes interest compensation to credit operations for financing trade receivables.

Depreciation* and amortization

expense
Agricultural 8QUIPMENt .......coovviiiiieiirinnns $ 255 % 236 § 225
Commercial and censumer equipment........ B2 75 73
66 65
250 250
9 8
$ 636 $§ 621
" Includes depreciation for equipment on operating leases.
Equity in income (loss}) of
unconsolidated atfiliates
Agricultural equUIPMENt.. ..o $ 10% 8% 2
Commercial and consumer eGuipment........ 1 (1) (2
Construction and forestry........oveeien s 10 (2)
Credit. e s 1 1
TOWA oo $ 21 8 6§ 1
Identifiable operating assets
Agricultural equipment.............ccoooeeinnnn $ 3342 $3383 $ 3145
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 1,383 1460 1330
Construction and forestry.....ooniinn, 2,386 2,078 1970
Credit. i 21,316 19,057 15937
DERET e 157 17 0
Corporate” 6136 7,291 6,043
Discontinued cperations..........cccevvveenee. 351 319
TOMAL v $34,720 $33,637 $28,754

* Corporate assets are primarily the Equipment Operations’ prepaid pension costs,
deferred income tax assets, marketable securities and cash and cash equivalents
as disclosed in Note 30, net of certain intercompany eliminations.

Capital additions
Agricultural equipment...........cccovnne $ 354 § 333 % 246
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 43 67 64
Construction and forestry 92 77 37
14 | 292 46 4
Discontinued operations...........ecceceoernnes 1 14
TOMAL oo s $ 781 % 524 § 365
Investment in unconsoiidated affiliates
Agricultural equUIPMENt ... $ 31§ 20% 18
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 4 3 4
Construction and forestry...........cccoovnnne. 84 80 81
00T 1 VPO 5 4 4
TOMAl e $ 124 & 107 § 107

{continued)




The company views and has historically disclosed its operations
as consisting of two geographic areas, the U.S. and Canada,
and outside the U.S. and Canada, shown below in millions of
dollars. No individual foreign country’s net sales and revenues
were material for disclosure purposes.

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS 2008 2005 2004
Net sales and revenues
Unaffiliated customers:
U.5. and Canada:
Equipment Qperations
net 5ales (90%)" ..o $13,851 $ 13,511 § 12332
Financial Services revemues (82%)*... 1,655 1,251 1,063
TOML e 15506 14,762 13,395
Outside 1.S. and Canada:
Equipment Operations net sales......... 6,033 5,890 5,340
Financial Services revenues............. 216 200 214
6,249 6.090 5,554
393 339 255

$22,148 § 21191 §$ 19,204

* The percentages indicate the approximate proportion of each amount that relates to
the LS. only and are based upon a three-year average for 2006, 2005 and 2004,

Operating profit
U.5. and Canada:

Equipment Operalions ... $ 1,445 8 1,298 $ 1,284

Financial Services ............. 470 431 413
T 1,915 1,729 1,697
Outside U.S. and Canada;
Equipment Operations ....................... 460 544 621
Financial SErvices ......voveeeeevveveeenn. 5 60 53
Total. oo 511 604 674
TOMAl oo e $ 2426 § 2333 § 2371
Property and equipment
LS, s $1730 § 1413 $ 1,304
Germany ............. 320 284 276
Other COUNMTIES.......ccovceririreeee e rireens 714 647 558
Total oo, $2764 § 2344 % 2138
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29. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly information with respect to net sales and revenues and
earnings is shown in the following schedule. Such information
is shown in millions of dollars except for per share amounts.

First Second  Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter*  Quarter  Quarter

2006
Net sales and revenues................. $4202 $6562 $6267 $5.117
NELSAIBS.......vceeee e, 3,691 6,025 5677 4487
Gross profit ...........ooooeveeceeeeeen, 795 1486 1,279 962
Income {rom continuing operations

before income taxes............... 340 785 681 368
NetiNCOME. ...o.co.ovvve e, 236 745 436 277
Income per share from

continuing operations — basic ... 95 219 1.87 1.21
Net income per share — basic........ 1.00 316 1.87 1.21
Income per share from

continuing operations — diluted .. .94 217 1.85 1.20
Net income per share — diluted ... 99 313 1.85 1.20
Dividends declared per share ........ 39 .38 .39 39
Dividends paid per share............... 31 39 .39 39
* See Note 2
2005
Net sales and revenues................ $3.935 $6441 $5823 $4,992
Netsales.........ooocvcccceeee 3527 6,019 5370 4,485
GroSSProfitc..eeereieceevesiien 757 1,474 1,106 885
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes.............. 333 888 570 316
NEt INCOME......c....coovevererrerereerrn 223 604 387 233
Income per share from

continuing operations — basic .. 87 244 1.57 92
Net income per share — basic........ . .90 246 1.60 a7
Income per share from

continuing operations — diluted .. 86 2.41 1.55 N
Net income per share — diluted ..... 89 243 1.58 96
Dividends declared per share......... .28 31 3 31
Dividends paid per share............... .28 .28 3 3

Net income per share for each quarter must be compuled independently. As a result,
their sum may not equal the total net income per share for the year.

Common stock per share sales prices from New York
Stock Exchange composite transactions quotations follow:

First Thirg Fourth
Quarter Quarter  Quarter

Second
Quarter

$ 7260 $89.00 $91.98 % 90.47
$ 6040 § 69.81 $69.79 $ 66.50

$ 7473 $7249 $73.98 § 73.85
$ 6147 & 61.01 $58.70 $ 56.99

At October 31, 2006, there were 28,530 holders of record
of the company’s $1 par value common stock.

Dividend

The board of directors, at its meeting on November 29, 2006,
increased the quarterly dividend to $.44 per share, from the
previous level of §.39 per share, payable on February 1, 2007
to stockholders of record on December 31, 2006,




30. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA

INCOME STATEMENT
For the Years Ended October 31, 2008, 2005 and 2004
{In miflions of dollars)

EQUIPMENT OPERAT!ONS* FINANCIAL SERVICES
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Net Sales and Revenues
NEE SAIBS . ..vveveveececrstsi st eee e s en s s s st b bbb $19,8840 $194014 3 17673.0
Finance and interest income ... gz.2 118.8 83.2 . $1,9803 $16015 §135637
CHENET ICOME ..o evems s en e ene e 38348 308.1 2361 163.6 86.1 138.6

TOMAL oot s 20,360.1 19,828.3 17,9923 21439 16876 1,4923
Costs and Expenses
COSE O SAIES +.vovvvevrerseceee e eb e er et et e 15,362.0 15179.3 13,582.3
Research and development EXPENSES ... 725.8 677.3 611.6
Selling, administrative and general BXpenses ........covwoveovvmeennis 1,942.1 1,766.8 1,647.6 384.3 322.3 340.0
INEFESt BXPENSE v.vivviverisieceeeeresreeececeemisrirsis 193.4 211.3 2050 876.1 607.3 423.3
Interest compensation to Financial SErvICaS......nn 2437 2231 2051
Other operating expenses 2399 146.4 97.7 3629 275.6 271.4

18,7069 18,204.2 16,349.3 1623.3 1,205.2 10347

Income of Consolidated Group before

INCOME TAXES ...oovovvoeeeseec ettt renen s 1,653.2 1,624.1 1,643.0 520.6 4824 4576
Provision fOr iNCOME TAXES oo v ev i re s 564.4 5277 546.4 177.3 170.8 156.7
Income of Consolidated Group 1,088.8 1,096.4 1,096.6 343.3 e 300.9
Equity in Income (Loss) of Unconsolidated

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

CIBAIL vt snr bbbt 342.8 3174 306.2 4 B B

(][] DN O OO PP CUUO PP TRRS 21.6 .2 (4.4}

TOMAL 11t b bbb e e 364.4 3176 3018 A 6 B
Income from Continuing Operations ... 1,453.2 1,414.0 1,398.4 3437 3122 301.5
Income from Discontinued Operations ... 2406 328 77 2406 32.8 7.7
NELIMCOME ...t $ 16938 § 14468 3 140861 $ 5843 § 3450 & 309.2

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis except for the health care operations reported on a discontinued basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Egquipment Operations™ reflect the basis of consolidation described in
Note 1 to the caonsolidated financial statements. The consolidated group data in the "Equipment Operations” income statement reflect the resuits of the
agricultural equipment, commercial and consumer equipment and construction and forestry eperations. The supplemenial “Financial Services” data
represent primarily Deere & Company's credit operations with the health care operations reported on a discontinued basis. Transactions between the
“Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services” have been eliminated to arrive at the consolidated financial statements.




30. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA {continued)

BALANCE SHEET
As of Qctober 31, 2006 and 2005
(In mitlions of dollars except per share amounts)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS*

ASSETS 2006 2005
Cash and Cash BQUIVAIBITES. ... e s srssss s s ss s e ee $ 14767 $ 19439
Cash equivalents deposited with unconsolidated subsidiaries ... 179.7

Cash and cash equivalents ...............c.ooceeececvie e, 1,476.7 21236
Marketable SECUMLIES .......cvivvevrineririe e 1,709.0 21587
Receivables from unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates... 494.2 324.4
Trade accounts and notes receivable - Net.......ovvericrencnnrs 986.7 8737
FINancing recaivables - NBL ....oovve e 53 586
Restricted financing receivables-net
Other receivables .........ocoeererrcvvein e, 3179 401.2
Equipment on operating leases - net
INYENLATIES ...ovcvvvevvcviicveieee 1,957.3 21349
Property and equipment - nat 2414.0 22713
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates....... 2.665.3 2.318.8
GOOAWIIL.........ooeeiie et eeert et r bbb rerarasa e renen 1,110.0 1,088.5
Other intangible ASSEIS = NMBL.....vv.ev ettt bbb ess e b 56.4 18.3
Prepaid pension costs 2,630.3 2,638.5
Other assets........covevnn 200.5 173.5
Deferred income taxes 681.5 7287
Deferred ChargeS . rvviniiincnns 105.6 102.2
Assets of discontinued operations 159.6
Toral ASSEIS ... $ 16,810.7 $ 175285
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES
ShOTt=18IM DOTTOWINTS . cveverir et ce ettt se ettt et ene st s ces et essreesenis $ 2825 $ 6774
Payables to unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ........... 31.0 141.1
Accounts payahle and 2CCIUET BXPEIMISES. .. ovviviiisisisiririeresssssrarsromsrssssessesesarens 4115.2 40447
ACCTUBH FAXBS 1.ttt oottt b e 1379 188.2
Deferred income taxes 16.8 11.8
Long-term borrowings 1,969.5 24234
Retirement benefit accruals and cther liabilities 2.766.6 3,190.4
Liabilities of discontinued operations ...........ooovviai,

ToHAl HABIEES ... et s r s 9,319.5 10,677.0
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value (authorized — 600,000,000 shares;

issued — 268,215,602 shares in 2006 and 2005),

AL SR VAIUB ... e e e s 2,212.0 20817
Common stock in treasury, 40,982,540 shares in 2006

and 31,343,892 shares in 2005, af COSt.......oveveenrvrire v e eieiesnens {2.673.4) (1,743.5)
Unamortized restricted stock compensation (8.5) (16.4}
RETAINGA BAIMINGS. ... ceeriesr i sb s asab e rrs s s b es 7,886.8 6,956.1

TORAL o b b ettt en s s 7416.9 6,877.9
Minimum pension lighility acjustment ..... (87.6) (108.9)
Cumulative translation adjustment.......... 150.3 70.6
Unrealized gain on derivatives ............ 6.8 6.2
Unrealized gain on iNVESIMEBNES. ........cvcviieiee et 48 57

Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME (I0SS).......oviveeeeiereeece e 74.3 (26.4)

Total StocKNOIAErS' BQUILY ......c...cveeiec e 7,491.2 6,851.5
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ... $ 16,8107 § 175285

FINANCIAL SERVICES
2006 2005

& 2108 § 3142

210.8 34.2
1077 104

1 3
24858 2,621.6
13,9987 12,8638
23708 1,4579
130.4 1218
1,493.9 13356
3496 66.1
4.6 4.3

121 24.2
2651 246.2
10.6 111
332 32.5
3913

$ 214732 $ 194613

$ 78386 $ 62064

472.2 485.7
803, 654.6
14.6 26.1
158.0 163.6
96145 9,315.4
26.3 41.9
191.7

18,827.3 17,0854
1,014 997.8
1,453.2 1,320.9
2,467.3 2,3187
65.2 409
8.7 7.4

4.7 8.9
786 97.2
25459 2.375.9

$ 21473.2 $ 18,4613

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis except for tha health care operations reporied on a discontinued basis.

The suppfemental consotidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Equipment Operations” reflect the basis of consolidation described in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The supplemental “Financial Services” data represent primarily Deere & Company's credit operations with the
health care operations reported on a discontinued basis. Transactions between the *Eguipment Operations” and “Financial Services™ have been eliminated to

arrive at the consolidated financial statements.
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30. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA (continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended October 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(In millions of dollars}

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS* FINANCIAL SERVICES
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 . 2004

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NELINCOME. ... vvevsi e ers e b seb s $ 16938 $ 14468 § 14061 § 5843 § 3450 §$ 309.2
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Provision for doubtful receivables ..., 14.6 13.2 9.3 514 12.9 421
Provision for depreciation and amortization..............cc.cooeene 406.8 3774 362.7 323.2 2979 2017
Gain on the sale of 2 BUSINESS ... (356.0} {356.0)
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries

and AffilAtES ... s {273.7) {181.8) 156.2 (.3} (6 (.5)
Provision (cvedit) for deferred income taxes........cco v 19.1 {40.2) 374.4 (3.4 (9.1) 10.6
Changes in assets and liabilities:

RECEIVADIES ......cvvivciecc s (108.4) 16.7 (112.9} (20.6) (4.3) 35.6

INVEMIOMES .o 211.8 {68.5} (293.6)

Accounis payable and accrued eXpenSes ... veeevviienenns 838 295.6 6.0 128.7 78,5 (3.0)

Retirement benefit accruals/prepaid pension €oSiS............ (395.1) (313.7) {(1,224.9) (4.9) 17 {20.9)

OIhB o s 14.6 115.9 (210.1) 89.8 (136.6) 5.4)
Net cash provided by operating activities...............ee 1,311.3 1,661.4 1,383.2 792.2 5854 653.4
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Collections of receivables...........cvvveeemcninnninns 370 29,067.2 274073 24,0151
Proceeds from sales of financing receivables 1396 1327 233386

Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities....... 29016 1,016.0 104.4 489 66.7

Proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases 586 8 3109 383.5 443.6
Proceeds from sales of busingsses, net of cash sold......... . 4401 50.0 90.4 2
Cost of receivables acquired ..., (17.3) (30,907.07  (30,415.2} (27,864.3)
Purchases of marketable SECUTLIES ........coccvcviiiiinrirveririnas (2.447.3) (3.175.4) (118.3) {100.9) (79.5)
Purchases of property and equipment ..o (493.1) (466.9) {345.9) (272.9) {45.7) (18.0)
Cost of operating leases acquired...........co v (808.9) (687.4) (571.1)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired.................ivee (55.7) (169.7) (192.9)
Decrease in receivables frem unconsciidated affiliates................ 274.3
OBRBE et s 324 (10.5) 344 (106.3) (42.9 {(37.2)
Net cash provided by {used for) investing activities......... 378.0 (2,750.9) (393.5) (2,591.3) (3.309.7) (1,436.6)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings ..o (140.6) 96.7 (63.3) 1,349.3 1777 (292 8}
Change in intercompany receivables/payables........cccvvvivinnnn. (184.4) 11327 {1,656.1) 4.7 (1177.4)  1,264.3
Proceeds from long-term DOTTOWINGS. ....ccoveveeveiinseccne 10.9 3,140.2 3,805.4 2178.7
Payments of long-1erm DOmowINgs ..., (782.7} (76.8) (267.4) (2,7378) (1,433.0) (204572}
Proceeds from issuance of Common SIOCK. ... 3276 153.6 250.8
Repurchases of COMMON SIACK ..o (1,299.3) (918.9) {193.1) )
DIVIAENDS PAIG-..........evoieeeeeeeseeeeess e es (348.4) {289.7) (246.6) (106.7) {166.7) (444.2}
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation............... 85.6
01 SO (10.6) {2.0) (4) 40.8 237 2.7
Net cash provided by {used for) financing activities......... (2,352.8) 95.8 (2,165.2) 1,690.5 27697 663.5
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash
and Cash Equivalents ................c.cococeenvcnieninneen. 16.6 (22.2) 276 5.2 28 10.5
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ... (646.9) {1,015.9} (1,147.9) (103.4) . 48.2 (109.2)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year................ 21236 31395 42874 314.2 266.0 375.2
Cash and Gash Equivalents at End of Year..........ccccuenninees $ 14767 $ 21236 § 31395 $ 2108 8§ 3142 § 2660

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Equipment Operations” reflect Deere & Company with Financial Services on
the Equity Basis. The supplementa! “Financial Services” data represent primarily Deere & Company's credit and health care operations. Transactions between
the “"Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services” have been eliminated to arrive at the consolidated financial statements.
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DEERE &« COMPANY

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(Dollars in millions except per share amournts)

2006

2004

2005 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Net 5ales and revenUBS. ... vereeieriesiininns $22,148  $21191  $19,204 $14,856 $13296 $12,694 $12,650 $11,289 $13,389 $12.412
NELSAIBS....oovvee i 19,884 19401 17,673 13,349 11,703 11,077 11,169 9,701 11,926 11,082
Finance and interest inCOME ........ccoovvveeveevvrnnane, 1,777 1,440 1,186 1,276 1,339 1,445 1,321 1,104 1,007 867
Research and development expenses................. 726 677 612 577 528 590 542 458 445 412
Selling, administrative and general expenses ...... 2,324 2,086 1,984 1623 1,546 1,609 1,407 1,265 1,213 1,203
INtErest BXPENSE ....ceveecvvvcteee e 1,018 761 592 629 637 766 677 557 519 422
Income (loss) from continuing operations............ 1,453 1,414 1,398 620 296 (83) 470 227 1,016 997
Netincome {l0SS) ....ocvvveveviiriireeeceeee e 1,694 1,447 1,406 643 319 (64) 486 239 1,021 960
Return on Net Sales........cccocrvereecciee e 8.5% 7.5% 8.0% 48% 2.7% (.B)% 4.3% 2.5% 8.6% 87%
Return on beginning stockholders' equity ........... 24.7% 22.6% 351% 20.3% 8.0% {1.5)% 11.9% 5.9% 24.6% 27.0%
Income {loss) per share from
continuing operations — basiC..........cvevenii $ 623 $ 581 $ 566 $ 258 $ 124 $ (35 & 201 § 98 % 418 $ 393
—diluted .........cevennin 6.16 574 5.53 2.55 1.23 {.35) 2.00 97 414 3.89
Net income (loss) per share — BasiC ...........cvvene 7.26 595 5,69 2.68 1.34 (.27} 207 1.03 4,20 3.78
—diluted .........oooevne 718 5.87 5.56 2.64 1.33 (.27) 2.06 1.02 416 374
Dividends declared per share 1.56 1.21 1.06 .88 .88 .88 .88 .88 .88 80
Dividends paid per Share......c....oveeereiereriisininns 1.48 1.18 1.00 .88 88 88 88 88 .86 80
Average number of comman
shares outstanding (in millions) — basic.......... 233.4 243.3 247.2 2402 238.2 235.0 2343 23249 2433 2537
—diluted........ 2358 246.4 2531 2433 240.9 236.8 236.0 2344 2457 256.6
TOMA BSSEIS ... $34720 $33637 $28754 $26,258 $23,768 $22663 $20469 $17578 $18,002 $16,320
Trade accounts and notes receivable —net......... 3.038 318 3,207 2,619 2,734 2,923 3,169 3,251 4,059 3,334
Financing receivables —Net.........c.c.ccoooeveveenin, 14,004 12,869 11,233 9,974 9.068 9,189 8,276 6,743 6,333 6,405
Restricted financing receivables — net ................ 2,37 1,458
Equipment on operating leases = net............e... 1,494 1,336 1,297 1,382 1,608 1,939 1,954 1,655 1,209 775
INVEMIONIES ... 1,957 2,135 1,999 1,366 1372 1506 1,553 1,294 1,287 1,073
Property and equipment — nst 2,764 2,343 2,138 2,064 1,985 2,037 1,893 1,759 1,675 1,494
Short-term borrowings:
Equipment Operations ..........ccccvvveeivrieiieeens 282 678 312 577 398 773 928 642 1,512 17
Financial SErvices .........covvvrrrevcvvcnnrerereenns 7.839 6,206 3,146 3,770 4,039 5,425 4,831 3,846 3,810 3,604
TOWAL oo 8,121 6,884 3,458 4,347 4437 6,198 5,759 4,488 5322 3,775
Long-term barrowings:
Equipmeant Operations ..........cccovvevieniecnn. 1,969 2,423 2,728 2727 2,989 2,210 1,718 1,036 553 540
Financial SErvICeS ...coovivervrvvvnineerrereens 9615 9,316 8,362 7677 5,961 4,351 3,046 2,770 2,239 2,083
L] 11,584 11,739 11,090 10,404 8,950 6,561 4,764 3,806 2,792 2,623
Total stockholders' equity ..o 7491 6,852 6,393 4,002 3163 3,992 4,302 4,084 4,080 4,347
Book value per share $2892 $2590 $1643 $1324 $1682 $1834 1751 $ 1756 $ 1657
Capital expenditures $ 512 $ 364 $ 313 § 358 F§ 495 § 419 § 308 § 438 § 492
Number of employees {at yearend)................... 46,549 47423 46465 43221 43051 45069 43670 38726 37002 34420
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STOEKHOIBERINEGRMATIGN

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of company stockholders will ba heid ac
10 3.m. on Febsuary 28, 2007, at the Deere & Company World
Headquarters, One John Deere Place, Moline, lllinos.

TRANSFER AGENT & REGISTRAR

Send address changes, certvficates for transfer and inquines
concernyng lost, stolen or destroyed stock certificates ar
dividend checks to

Deere & Company

¢/o The Bank of New York

Recewe &r Deliver Dept. - 11W

P.O. Box1apz, Church Street Station,

New York, NY 10286

Phone toll-free: 1-Boo-268-736¢

From outside the U S, call: (610} 3125303
TTY.1-888-269-5221

www stockbny,.com

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT &
DIRECT PURCHASE PLAN

Investors may purchase initial Deere & Company shares

and autornatically reinvest dividends through The Bank of

New York's BuyDIRECT Plan. Automatic monthly cash invest-
ments can be made through electronic debits.

Farinquines about existing reinvestment accounts, call the
toll-free nurber above, or write to

Deere & Company -ORP

¢/ o The Bank of New York

P.O Boxgs58

Newark, N| opo1-9774

STOCKHOLDER RELATIONS

Deere & Company welcomes your comments
Deere &7 Company

Stockholder Relations Department

One John Desre Place, Mokne, IL §1265-8098
Phone: (309) 765-4539 Fax (309) 765-5672
wwaw.johndeere.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Securities analysts, portfotio managers and reprasentatives
of financial institutions may contact:

Marie Ziegler

Vice President, Investor Relatons

Deere €& Company

Qne John Deere Place, Moline, IL 61265-8058

Phone: {30) 765-4491
www.johndeere.com

STOCK EXCHANGES

Ceere & Company comman stack is isted on the New York

Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol DE.

FORM10-K

The Form 10-K annual report to the Securities and Exchange
Commussion will be available online in January, or upon written
request to Deere & Company Stockholder Relations,

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Ihaors

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING PUBLIC
DISCLOSURES & LISTING STANDARDS

Deere has filed with the Sequnties and Exchange Commussion
as exhubits 31.1 and 31.2 to its Form 10 -K for the year ended
October 3, 2006, the cerufication required by Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding the quality of the company's
public disdosure {n addition, the annual cernfication of the
Chief Executive Officer regarding comphance by Deere with
the corporate governance listing standards of the New York
Stock Exchange was submitted without qualification to the
New Yark Stock Exchange following the February 2006 annual
shareholder meeting.

CORPORATE LEADERSHIP

ROBERT W. LANE (25)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

JAMES R. JENKINS (8)
Senior Vice President and General Counsel

MICHAEL ). MACK, JR. (20}
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
FRANCES B. EMERSON (1)

Vice President, Corporate Communications
and Brand Management

JAMES M. FIELD {12)
Vice President and Camptroller

DHETER HECHT (38)
Vice President, Worldwide Parts Services

KLAUS G.HOEHN (14)
Vice President, Advanced Technology and Engineering

MERTROE B. HORNBUCKLE (31)
Vice President, Human Resources

KENNETH C, HUHN (31)
Vice President, Industriat Relations

JAMES R. JABANOSKI (26)
Vice President, Information Technolagy

THOMAS K. JARRETT (18)
Vice President, Taxes

GANESH JAYARAM®
Vice President, Corporate Business Davelopment

GARY L. MEDD (40)
Vice Prgsident, Internal Audit

LINDA E. NEWBORN (34)
Vice President and Chief Compliance Officer

WILLIAM F. NORTON (6)
Vice President, Worldwide Supply Management

DENNIS R. SCHWARTZ (39)
Vice President, Pension Fund and | nvestments

CHARLES R. STAMP, JR. (7)
Vice President, Public Affairs Worldwide

MARIE Z. ZIEGLER {28)
Vice President, investor Relations

MARC A. HOWZE (5)
Corporate Secretary and Associate General Counsel

WORLDWIDE
AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT

DAVID C. EVERITT (31)
President, Agriculteral Division -~ North America,
Australia, Asia and Global Tractor and Implemant Sourcing

ADELA. ZAKARIA(30)
Executive Vice President, Strategic Manufacturing and
Engineering, Global Tractor and Implement Sourcing

DOUGLAS C. DEVRIES (32)
Senior Vice President, Agricultural Marketing —
MNorth America, Australia, Asia

BHARAT 5. VEDAK (17)
Senior Vice President, John Deere Intelligent
Mobile Equipment Technologies

BERNHARD HAAS (20)
Vice President, Manufacturing, Global Tractor
and Implement Sourcing

H.J. MARKLEY (32)
President, Agricultural Division - Europe, Africa,
Seouth America and Global Harvesting Equipment Sourcing

MAX A GUINN (26)
Sentor Vice President, Manufacturing and
Engineering, Global Harvesting Equipment Sourcing

DANIEL C. MCCABE (32}
Seniar Vice President, Jokn Deere Agri Services

MARKWART von PENTZ {16}
Sanior Vice President, Marketing and Product
Support - Europe, Africa, Middle East

WORLDWIDE
CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY

SAMUEL R. ALLEN (31)
President, Worldwide Construction &
Farestry Division and John Deere Power Systems

ROGER L. BRIDGES (34)
Vice President, Strategic Partnerships,
Waorldwide Construction & Farestry

808 B. BROCK {28)

Senior Vice President, Waorldwide

Construction £ Forestry Sales and Marketing
BARRY W, SCHAFFTER (33)

Senior Vice President, Engineering and Manufacturing,
Worldwide Construction & Farestry

JEAN GILLES {26)
Senior Vice President, John Deere Power Systems

WORLDWIDE COMMERCIAL
& CONSUMER EQUIPMENT

NATHAN ). JONES (28)
President, Worldwide Commercial &
Consumer Equipment Division

ROBERT C. HOVE(27)
Senior Vice President, Customer Marketing Er Sales

VIVIEN H. JOKLIK (5)
Senior Vice President, Product Marketing
& Business Development

RANDAL A. SERGESKETTER (26)
Senior Vice President, Manufacturing,
Engineering & Supply Management

DAVID P.WERNING (30)
Senior Vice President, Commercial Segment

JOHN BEERE CREDIT WORLDWI!DE

JAMES A. ISRAEL (27)
President, John Deere Credit

STEPHEN PULLIN (12)
Senior Vice President, International Financing

LAWRENCE W. SIDWELL (7)

Senior Vice President, Agricultural Financial Services

MARTIN L. WILKINSON (29)
Senior Vice President, Renewable Energy

{ ) Figures in parenthieses represent complete pears
of company service through 1/1/07; assignments as of 1/1/07

*Joined compony in 2006
Unless otherwise indicated, off capitalized names

of products and services are trademarks or service
marks of Deere & Company.
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Directors from left: Antonio Madero B., Vance D. Coffman, Dipak C. jain, Crandall C. Bowles, T. Kevin Dunnigan,
Robert W. Lane, Arthur L. Kelly, Thomas H. Patrick, Richard B. Myers, Joachim Milberg, Aulana L. Peters, John R. Walter.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Photo taken at fohn Deere’s Davenport Works facility in Davenport, fowa.

CRANDALL C. BOWLES (10)
Co-Chairman and Co-Chief Exscutive OHicer
Springs Globat U5, Int, and Springs Globat
Participacoes 5.A.,

Chairman, Springs Industries, Inc.

home furnishings

VANCED.COFFMAN (2)

Retited Chairman

Lockheed Martin Carporation
cerospote, defense and information techinology
T. KEVIN DUNNIGAN (6)

Retired Chairman

Thomas &r Betts Corporation

electricel components

DIPAK C. JAIN (4)
Dean, Kellogg School of Management
Northwestem University

ARTHUR L. KELLY (13)
Managing Partner

KEL Enterprises L.P.

holding and investment partnership

ROBERT W.LANE (6)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Deere & Company

ANTONIO MADERO B. ()
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
SANLLUIS Corporacin, S.A. de C.V.

autgmeotive components manufacturing

JOACHIM MILBERG (3)

Chairman, Supervisory Board
Bayerische Motoren Werke (BMW) AG
motor vehides

RICHARD B. MYERS*
Retired Chairman, Joint Chiefs of Staff
Retired Genera!, United States Air Force

THOMAS H. PATRICK (6)
Chairman

New Vernon Capital, LLC
private equity

AULANAL. PETERS (4)
Retired Partner

Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP
fow

JOHN R.WALTER (15)
Chairman

Ashlin Management Company
private investments

() Figures in parentheses represent complete yeors
of board service thraugh1/1/07; positions as of 1/1/07

*oined board in 2006

COMMITTEES

AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE PENSION PLAN OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
T. Kevin Dunnigan, Chair Crandall C. Bowles, Chair Thomas H. Patrick, Chair

Dipak C. Jain Vance D. Coffman Dipak C. Jain

Joachim Milberg T. Kevin Dunnigan Arthur L. Kelly

Thornas H. Patrick
Aulana L. Peters

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Arthur L. KeWy, Chair

Crandall C, Bowles

Vance D. Coffman

Antonio Madero 8.

Richard B. Myers

Joachim Milberg
Aulanal.Peters

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Robert W. Lane, Chair
Crandall C. Bowles

T. Kevin Dunnigan

Arthur L. Kelly

Thomas H. Patrick

Antonio Madero B.
Richard B. Myers




Deere’s D-series motor graders,
such as the midsize 772D model,
are winning new construction
contractor customers, who value
superior productivity, uptime, and
low operating costs.

tntegrated cabs mean more comfort
and productivity for products such
as the John Deere 3520 compact
tractor, which is experiencing
growing popularity with large
property owners and landscapers.

Through advanced technology,
the John Deere Jo30-series
large-frame tractors are bringing
increased power, performance and
productivity to farmers throughout
the world.

Key among Deere's aggressive
efforts to drive future operating
performance, and reduce tractor
build times, the multi-year
redevelopment at the Waterloo o ®
Works moved toward :
completionin2006.

Deere & Company 2006 Highlights

o Benefiting from growth worldwide, © Construction & Forestry marks sath © John Deere Landscapes sales climb as
company earnings reach record $1.6¢ billion; anniversary with advanced new praducts a result of expanding presence
revenues increase 5% to $22.15 billion. and record-setting financial performance. and growing market for commercial

o Underscoring'gorqﬁwifrﬁ;gt' to investor £ i 0 Upgraded o30-series tractors (100-155 hp) landscaping and grounds maintenance.
value, compapy:shdre fepurchases and introduced, offering premium level of comfort, © John Deere Engine Works, Waterloo,
dividends total $1.6 billiop.- -, technology and performance in midsize produces one-millionth engine.

o New technology center opens in Pune, vehicles. O PowerTech Plus g.oL engine honored
India, providing information technology, O Reflecting a strong commitment to employee as diesel product of the year by Diesel
engineering, supply management and safety, worldwide lost-time injury rate magazine.
other services for operations worldwide. declines 7%, and is in line with historic

¢ Supported by excellent portfolia
quality, John Deere Credit achieves
record net income of $343 million.

lows. (For more detaits, see 2006 Globat
Citizenship Report, at www.johndeere.com
available 1 April 2007).

P

© Deere acquires Roberts Irrigation Produicts,
providing foundation for new business
initiative in precision water systems.

JOHN DEERE

Deere & Company  Crejohn Deere Place  Moline, lllinois 61265 phone:309.765.8000  www johndeere.com




